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Independent Auditors’ Report

Tw the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manofacturing Company
i A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

R A soliduted al

Opinion

We have sudited the aceompanying consolidated financial sttements of Filling  and Packing Muterials
Manufacturing Company (A Saudi Joint Steck Company) ("the Company”) and its subsidiary (Collectively
referred 1o as“the Group™),which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position es at December
31, 2022, the consolidated statements of profits or losses and other comprehensive income, Consolidated
statement of change in Shareholder's equity and Consolidated statement of cash flows for the yesr then
ended, and notes 10 the Consolideted fnancial statements significant scoounting policies and other
explanatory nformation.

In eur opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statemetits present fairly, in all material respecis,
il consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022, and its financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdem of Saud Arabiz and other stzndards and
pronouncements issued by the Saudi Orgamization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA]

ar O

We conducted our audit in sccordance with International Standerds on Auditing {ISAs) including o
summary of endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Cur responsibilizies under those standards mre
furthes described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finnncil Statements™
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the code of conduct and ethics
adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, also fulfilled the requirements of conduct of other ethics in
secordance with those rules . We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit mattérs are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
auditof the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consclidated financial stalements asa whole, and in forming our opinion fhereen,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued}

To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

K

Key audit matter
Valuation of Inventories

A5 ot December 31, 2022, the inventories
balance was SR 62,189455 (2021 SR
62,994,111) net of allowance for slow
moving inventorics of SR ZERO (2021
SR 3,749,919,

[nventories are stated af the lower of cost
and net realizable value and an allowance
is made, where necessary, for obsolete and
slow moving items.  Management
determines the level of obsolescence of
inventories by considering the npature,
ageing profile, their expiry dates and sales
expectations using historic trends and
pther qualitative factors. At each reporting
dote, the cost of inventories is reduced
where inventories are forecasted o be sold
ot below cost,

We consider this as a key audit matter due
to the significamt judgments and key
assumptions applied by the management
in determining the allowance for show
moving items and the level of invenionies
write down required based on Nel

Realizable Value (NRY) assessment.

The accounting policy and disclosures
related 1o the inventory ane sel oul in the
notes to the financial statements refer
Mote (1-1-3) for the sccounting policy on
ipventories and Wote (7} for the relevant
disclosures.

w the addres dit

We performed the following sudit procedures in refation
to valuation of inventones:

1

Assessed the oppropristencss of the Giroup's
accounting policies for recognition and measurement
of inventortes iz line with the requirements of
relevant aecownting standands;

Evaluated the appropnatencss of the Group's policy
for allowance [or obsoleted and slow moving
inventories by performing retrospective  testing,
comparing historical estimates with actual losses and
Evaluste the validity and adequacy of its caleulation.

Attended periodical physical count of mventones on
selected loeations to sdentify expired, lost or slow-
moving items;

Tested the net realizable value of finished poods
inventories as &t Decemnber 31, 2022 by considering
actual sales post vear- end and the assumptions used
by the management to check whether inventories are
valued at the lower of cost and net realizsbie value;
ar

Evalusted the completencss and adequacy of the
inventory-related disclosures included in the Group's
consolidnbed financisl statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report {continued)

To the Sharcholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manulacturing Company
(A Sandi foint Stk Company'

RLpHaAEs | OO O

EERBEPS ) WArER

hey audit matter
Revenue recognition

During the year encded
December 31, 2022, the Group
recognized total revenue of SR
260654273 (2021: SR
222,590,032},

Revenus is a key measure of
the performence and there 15 a
risk that revenue may  be
overstated resulting more profit
50 we consider this as a key
audit matter. This is due 1o the
extstence of msks  of
management overniding
iternal  controls  and  the
existence of an inherent nsk
that revenues are recognized at
more than their actual value o
increase  profiability, as the
company focuses on revenucs
ss & key indicator of Ifs
performance

The accounting policy and
disclosures related 10 the
inventory are set out in the
potes o the  financial
statements, refer Note (3-1-11)
for the accounting policy
reluted to revenue recognition
and Mote (19 for the relevant
disclosures.

¢ matter was d audit

We performed the following audit procedures in relation to

revenue recognition!

- Obtained an understanding of the revenue recognition
process, taking into account the relevant accounting
standards, and ecvalusted the appropristeness of the
accounting policies applied in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS Na. (15) “Revenue from Coniracts
with Customers™.

- Obtained an understanding of internal control procedures
related to revenue recognition and their operational
effectiveness, including control procedures for combating
fraud of the Crroup,

- Performed analytical procedures for revenue, by comparing
sales quantities and prices for the current year with the
previous year, and detemmining whether there are any
significant trends or {luctastions need to complete further
inquirics und testing in light of our understanding of
current market condiions,

- Inspected on a sample basis of revenue transactions with
supporting documents, and cut-off procedures to venfy that
revenue ts recorded in the proper penods.

- Tested a sample of journal entries posted to the revenue
journal in order to identify irregular items or sigmificant
adjustments.

- Evaluated the adequacy of the revenue-related disclosures
that management has included in the Group's consolidated
financial statements,

- %
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Independent Auditors” Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Mansfacturing Company
(A Sauedi Jaina Stock Campany)
Key audit matler How the maiter wis in_our
audit
Deferred liability for acquis the non-controlling ~ We  performed  the  following  audit
interest procedures m relation to the deferred

During the year 2020 the parent company aequired lighility for acguis the non-controlling

the non-coptrolling  interest i the  subsidiary
represented in 20% of the company's  interest
Jagainst a percentage of the future net profit without
charging the seller any curent or the future losses
Accordingly, the company prepared a study as on
December 31, 2022 1o calculate that obligation
according to the best estimate, in light of the
available dsin, as thot liahlity amounded o SR
15,602,000,

Manngement used a set of key nssumptions and
estimates related to study 1o caloulate the obligation
, based on the future operating performance, the
following are the most significant assumptions and
financial estimates were used:

- Expected volume of production

- Estimated sales quantities

- Forecasts of sales prices and growth rates
= Dperating cost and the future development
- MMacouns rates

IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets™ requires thot the management
recognized a provision in the best estimate of the
expenditure required to setile the present obligation
as at December 31, 2022,

Considered a key audil matter due to significant
judgments and key assumptions that management
applics when determining 2 contingent liability.

- Distusged  the

imlereit;

- Compare a sample of price forecast with

raarket dala points snd competitors;

- Involving m specialist 1o review the study

and the reasomableness of the assumplions
and financial estimates used;

COATIPANY's
departments on the compmtibility of some
unchservable inputs, such as the expected
production volume, the future operating
and development costs, and  their
compatibility with the normal production

capacity.

Wanaus

- Assessed e reasonabieness of  the

mothedology and the inputs used to
detenmine the contingent liability.

- Assesied the reasonablencss of discount
rates by validating relevant assumptions
with chaervable market data.

« Performed & sensitivity analyses over the
key assumphions and assessed the potential
impac of a mnge of possible oulcomes.

- Considered the adequacy of the disclosure

in the Growp’s consolidated financial
slements s per  the
accounting standard.

applicable

The accounting policy and disclosures related 1o the
deferred obligation in exchange for the purchase of
the non-controlling interest are st oul in the nofes (o
the financial siatements, refer Note {3-1-16) for the
accounting pelicy related 1o revenue recognition and
Wote 25 for the relevant disclosures,
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Indepeadent Auditors' Report (continued)

To the Sharehalders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Other Matier _
The Company's consolidated financial stitements for the year ended December 31, 2021, were sudited by
another auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinson on March 22, 1022

Otiher Information

Management i3 respensible for the other information. The other information consists of the information
included in the annual repon of the board of directors but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon, Which are expected to be made available to us after the date of

Qur report

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any kind of assurance thereon,

With regards to our audit of the consolidated financial smtements, our responsthility limited to reading the
other information identificd above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information described above , and when reading it , we take into account whether the other information
does not materially correspond 1o consalidated financial statement or information obtained during the audst
process or other wise appears to contain significant misstalements,

If, upon reading the board's report | we conclede that it comiains matesial misstatements , we must inform
those charged with governance of this matier.

h Crovernance [or the

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
i secordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and for such intemal controls as
management detenmings is recessary o enable the preparmtion of conselidated Fnancial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whather due to [raud or errar,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Croup's
ability 10 continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going congemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 1o cease
operations, or has no realistic alizrnative but to do so.

Thote charged with governance, Board of Directors members are responsible for overseeing the Group's
fincial reporting process,
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Independent Auditors’ Report (confinued)

To the Sharchobilers of Filllag and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
& Saudi Joimd Steck Conspany)

Anditors” B

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements a8 4
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to froud or error, &nd to issue an apditors” report that
includes our opinion. 'Reasonable assurance’ is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that &n audit
conducted in accordance with Intermational Standards cn Auditing (IASs) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabin will always detect a materinl misstaement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frayd or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with LASs, we excrcise professional judgement and maintain professicnal
sikepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify nnd assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to frawd or error, design and perform audit procedures respoasive to those misks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of net detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from erroe, as frand may
imvolve oollusion, forgery, intentional omessions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Oibstain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order w degign audil procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- [Evaluate the appropristeness of accountimg policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting estimates

pnd relsted disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the approprinteness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the wudit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertsinty exists related to events oc
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability 1o continue as a going concern. I we
conchude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to dmw attention in our suditors’ report 1o
the related disclosures in the consoliduted finnncial statements or, if such disclosures are inndequate, (o
modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
suditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue ng a
HOUE COneern,

- Evaluate the overall presentaiion, structure and contenl of the consolidated financial stavements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial stetements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that schicves fair presentation,

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financizl mformation of the entites or

business activities within the Group 1o express an opimon on the consoldafed financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our aundit opinion.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidénce regarding the fmancal mformation of the entities or
business activilies within the Group to express an opinion on (he consolidated financiel statements, We
are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit 'We remain solely
responsible for our awdit opinion.

4]
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Indtependent Anditers® Beport (continueed)

To the Sharchalders of Fliling and Packing Materisls Manufsciuring Company
(A Saudi Jomt Srock Company)

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify dunng our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regerding independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters commumcated with those charged with governance, we determime those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Soudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As At 31 December 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise siaiced)

Asseiy

Man- Current Assers

Property, Plast and Equipment, net
Right-of-Use Assels .net

Total Mon- Current Assels
Current Assets

[nventories net

Trade Receivables ,net,
Prepayments and Other Recelvables
Investments al Fair Valee through Profit or Loss
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Carrent Assets

Total Asseis
Equity and Liabiliti
Equity

Share Capatal

Sintutary Reserve

Retmined Earnings

Effect of Non-Controlling Interests Acquisition
Total equity

LIABILITIES

M- iahilifics

Long-Term Loans

Lease Liabilities

Emplovess’ End of Service Benclits

Deferred Liability agamst Mon-Controlling Interests Acquisition

Tutal Non-Current Linbilitics
Curreni Liabilities

Current Portion of Loag-Term Loans
Short-Term Loans

Trade Pavables

Lease Liabilities

Accrued and Other Lisbilities
Provision for Zakat

Tutal Current Linbilities
Total Linbilities

Twtal Equity and Liabilities

Chiel Financial Officer Vice Chair

< ] companying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e 31,2022 31,2001
(5) 149,023,423 | 48,266,480
6-A) 6,449,941 6,546,091
155,473,364 155212571
(7) 62,189,455 (2,994,111
(3; 46,238,319 48,030,950
(9) 14,579,374 18,560,223
(10) 5,784,363 6,513,192
(i) 2,892,135 12,133 800
131,683,646 148232 276
287,157,010 303,444 847
(12) 115 000 000 | 15,000,000
(13) 17,388,320 | 6,408 804
25,004,258 14,037,893
(25) | (25.358,702) (25,358,702}
132,033,876 120,087,995
(14-1) 44,024,701 56,680,705
(6-B) 6,913,549 7327222
(16) 12,203,726 12,504,280
(25) - 15,612,000 19,564 865
 TBTSINIE aq 077072
(14-2) 19,555,213 13,322,449
(14-3) 5,712,567 28,657,781
Jl. 164,824 24, TT2.427
(6-B) 413,663 393,965
(15) I6,426,355 17,462,018
(18) 3,096,536 671,130
_ 76,369,158  R7,279, TR0
155,123,134 183,356,852
287,157,010 303444547
sing Director Chalrman

gL



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company }

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Far the vear ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saodi Hival unless otherwise stated)

For the vear ended Decem 1
2022 w21
Mote

Revemue {19 260,654 273 222,580,032
Cost of Revenues (0)  (218451237) (193505,049)
Gross Proflt 42,203,036 28,984,583

g o Lo L 3 b el
Sclling ond Distribution Expenscs (21) [14,286,074) (11,283,439)
Ceeneral and Administrative Expenses 22 (19,922 544) (18,840,048)
Expected Credit Losses (E) {1,703,160) (4,044,137}
Crther Income!{ Expenses).net {23) 4,485,290 183077
Operating Profit © {Loss) 10,776,548 {4,999 564
Finnce costs {24) (5,771,188) (4,088.678)
Chonge in Liability against Non-Controlling Interests Acquisition  (25) 5375613 2,182,883
G of Investments pd Fair value throu gh Profit or Loss 2,542 961 1.838.848
Met Profit / {Loss) before Zakat 12,52_3-._954_ {S.F’E—E'T.EHJ
Zoka (15) _ (3.128775)  (3,996.556)
Met Profit / Loss) Tor the year 8,795,159 (9,083,067 )
Other Comprehensive Income:
Itemis that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss:
Actuarial Gain of Emplovees’ End of Service Beneliis Remeasureme 2,150,722 447 357
Total Comprehensive Gain/{Loss) for the vear 11,945,881 (8,615,710}
Cuin /Loss) per Basic share based on Profit / (Loss) for the
year atiributable to Sharchalders of the Company
Earnings per share (17) 0.85 (0.79)
Chicf Financial Officer Viee Chairman and Managing [Mrecior Chairman

A

The sccompanying nodes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
LA Sandi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended December 31, 2022

{Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated)

Deferred Liability
Share Statutary Retained againgt Non- Total
Lapital Reserve Earnings Controfling lnterests —
Acyuisition
Balonce ns ot 1 Jonuary 2021 1 5,00, 0 16,408 Bk 22653603 (25555, 02 128.703,705
iv ihe v -
Met Ioss for the year - - 19,063,067) - (9, 063,067)
(nher comprehensive Loss For the year = . 447 357 - 447357
Total Comprebensive boss for the year 3 3l (R615.710) " (8615710}
Balamee as at 31 December 2021 115, 0000, DM 1y, 408 Rl 14,037 803 {25 35R.T0O2) 120,087 #05
Balance as 8t | January 2022 115,000,000 16,408 8id 14,037 893 (25.358.702) 120,087 995
ther compre ave i
Met loss for thi yeas - 3 4. 795, 159 - g 705,159
iMher comsprehenaive prafil for the year - - 2150722 - 2,150,722
Transfer to Statuiory Feserve = 979.516 (F79.516) = =
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 979516 10.966.365 E 11,945 881
Balance a= at 31 December 2122 115,60, i) 1738830 25, 04,258 {25 35K T0OZ) 132033876
Chicf Financial Officer Vice Chairman and Managing Director _ Chairman

COMPanying notes are part of these consolidated financial statements.

e
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FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Jeint Steck Company}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Rival unless ofherwise stated)

Mot Profiv] Loss) before Zakat

Adjustments:

Depreciation of Propenty, Plaot ond Equipment
Amaortization of Right-of-Use Assets

Inventory Provision, Mo Longer Required /Formed

Reversal of Impairment Loss on Trode Receivables, Formed
Current Cost Service of Employees’ End of Service Benefits
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equiproent

Change in Liability against Non-Controlling Interests Acquisinon
Craim of Investments ot Fair Yolee through Profit or Loss
Finance Expenses

Changes in;

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Prepayments and Other Receivables

Trade Poyables

Accrued and Other Liabilitkes

Cugh from Operitions

Employces Benefits Paid

Lakat Paid

Met Cosh Flows Generated From / (Used In) Operating Activitics
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

Proceeds from Sale of Investments st Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Acquigition of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Net Cash Flows (Used In) / Generated From Investing Activitles
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from Loans and Facilities

Poyments of Loans and Facilitics

Payments of Lease Liabilities

Finance Cozts Puid

Net Cash Flows (Used In) Financing Activities

Met (deecrense) [ increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents during the vear
Cash amd Cash Equivalents o1 the beginming of the vear

Cush and Cash Equivalents af end of the vear

Chiel Financial Officer

The accompanying notes aré an infegral part of these consolidoed fnancial statements

Viee Chairman and Mlnl_aing Direcior

For the vear ended Decemberdl,
Note 2012 2021
12,923,934 (5,066,511
(5} B.046,271 7.584,360)
(6} 496 150 496, 1 50
t7) - {950,000)
1,703,160 4.044.137
{186) 2,156,410 1,990,809
- 620,683
{5,375.613) {2,182.883)
2,163,171} {1.B38.848)
5,771,188 4,088 678
23,558,310 8,785,575
204,636 {14,304,346)
£9,471 {11.822.855)
3980849 SEh. 147
6,392,397 12,762,026
(1035 684) 39087
33,790,018 {3.601.3686)
(T05,926) (63E.601)
(2.703,359) (4337013}
_ 30,380,733 (K626.980)
(R.B03,215) (8,007,120}
3,738,463 17, TI1R 348
(B46,463) (4.403283)
(5.911,215) 25,297,945
57,452,204 19,674,505
(87,235,767 {30,704,462)
(393,965) {375,20%)
_ {3333,65T) (1,768,256)
{13 173.418)
(9,241,665) 3,497 547
1133800 §636,253
1E92.135 12,133,800
Chairman




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For ihe year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated )

1. General lnformation

1-1 Filling ond Packing Materials Manufacturing Company (“the Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock
Company, registered in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial Registration numbered 1010084155
i3 1ssued from Rivadh city dated on Dhul Hijiah 4, 1411 (H} comresponding to June 17, 199 (G}, The
Company was established according o Ministerial Decision Mo, 851 dated Shawowal 17 1411(H})
cormesponding to May 2, 1991 (G) and Ministerinl Decision No.953 dated Dhul-Qa'dah 29, 1411 (H)
correspanding to June 12, 1991 (G).

1-2 The Compuny conducts 1t's business mn:
Wenving fabric from artificial threads such as nylon, Cutling and custom-made the machine’s cover and
goods, Manufacture the plastio in its pnmary forms, Manufocture artificial threads, which includes
(nylon, polyester, etc.), Manufacture the containers from plastic, Manofacture the small bags from the
plastic pursuant te an Industrial license No. 1001009549 which issued dated Safar 29,1441(H)
corresponding September 29, 2009 (G).

The company conducts it's activities through the following branches:

nech ma Branch Dot and Activity
Commerciul lpcation of
Hegistration Mo, Issunnce

Branch of a compiny Filling 1010608121 Sha'aban Construction  and  butlding
ond Packing Materials 11,1438 (H}  contracting

Marufacturing Company Riyadh.

Branch of a company Filling 1010675111 Jumada-1 Manufacture  of  plastics
and Pucking Maberinls 51442  (H) (plastics) in their primary
Musufsctuning Company RBiyadh forms, tsolbstion and

prepiaration  of  vegetoble
fibers such nz hemp and
kenafl,

I-3 The Company's capital s set at SK 115,000,000 (One hundred ond fifteen million) divided into
11,500,000 shores |, the shares value 15 SR 10

1-4 The Financial year begins on the first of January of vach vear and ends on December 31 of the same
Vi,

1-5 The head office of the Company is located at 7306,Phise - New Industral City, PO Box 14335 +Riyadh-
24%3,

1-6 The antached consolidated finoncial stmements include the financial satements Tor Filling and Packing
Materials Manufacturing Company ("Company”) or (“parent company”) and its domestic subsidiary
company {1 pointed 1o them together as the group) where domg the group as collectively to produce
and marketing the bags which wre woven from liner polypropylens inside and outside the kingdem of
Saudi Arabia and unliner from polyethylene is diluted the density and the big size bags and strapping
bands and the plastic fillers and woven bags these are used for packing vegetables and fruits and rolls
woven from polypropylene and the liners of polyethylene and the recycling of plastic waste, Building
and construction contracting.



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2022
(Expressed in Soudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

1. General Information { Continued)

Company pame Country of Main Activity Percentage of ewnership
incorporstion 2022 021
FrC Kangehom of  Manufucture of resdy- 100%% 10

Saudi Arnbia

made textiles,
excluding apparel

Branch name

FPC Co for industry

factory

Maknmen Supply
Company for Trade and
Contracting

Wiest Makormen OO for
Tents owned by one
person

Makmmien
Dammam OO for Tents

Qaszim Makamen CO lor
Tents

Zilal Al Dana Co. for
Tema

FPC Industries Company,
[ubar Branch

Branch
Commercial
Registration

Mo,
|01 068 T4

[01{499598

030381209

I0S0143023

1131311978

1010822409

E1l440

Diaie pnd locuiben of

nance
Jumada 11 13,1438
(H} Rrvadh.

Rabza 11 L1, 1440 (H)
Fiyadh,

Ramadan 27,1441 (H)
Jediinh,

Rambl7 1442 [H)
[ammam
Rajabi7 1442 [H})
Burnida

Safar |, 1444H Riyadh

Showel 27, 1442 [H)
Dubsni

Activity

Manufuclure  of  ready-made
textilcs except for apparel -
activity eode 1392

Tatlorimg  and  sewing  travel
supplies  culling  and  custam-
made Tor tents and sails |, cutting
mnd custom-made airports,  and
the covers of cars and fumiture
Tailoring  and  sewing  trnvel
supplies cufting and  custom-
made for tents and sails |, cutting
and costom-made airporis, and
the eovers of curs and furniiure
Retail textiles and fabrics of
clothed types retail textiles and
fabrics ol unwom types such as
curtning, redml enis.

Metwil textiles and fabrcs of
clothed tvpes retoil textiles and
fabrics of unwom types such as
curtning, retail tents,
Blacksmithing workshop

Management office

1-6-1 At the end of the first quarter of the year 2020 (i) the Company has announced (Filling and Poacking
Materinls Manulbetunng Company) on the Tadwal's site dated Rajab 7, 1441 {H) corresponding
March 2, 2020 (G) about s signing convention for ucquisition the whole of non-controlling gquotas in

the subsidiary company where the quota of the

Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing

Company m the subsidiary company is B0% while the partner owns (Erad investment co.) a
percentnge 2004, therefore, will become the subsidiary company is fully ewned for the Company
(Filling and Pocking Materials Manufacturing Company) and the convention of acquisition is
requiring the parner o abdicate his whole quotas which are 20% in the subsidiary company for it's
rights and lisbilities 1o (Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company) will be in exchange
for obtaining on d percentage 20% of the net profit secording o the audited lnancial statements st the
end of cach vear for only ten years {duration of convention) Gl the end the fnoncial year on 31,2029
Pecember, The articles of incorporation his been amended sccording thad

|-6-2

Diecember, 2002 and 2021 G (MWote Mo 25),

13-

The impact of thar convention hos been presented on the consolidated fimancial  statemens on 31
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FILLING AND PACKIMNG MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Sauwdi Riyal unless oilerwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-1 Accounting standards upplicd
These consolidoted finoncial statements have been prepared in secordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) that nre endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabin and other stondords and
pronouncements that are issued by Saodi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountents

{(SOCPA).

Wherever the phrase “Internationsl Fingncial Reporting Standards™ appears in these notes, 0 refers o
“Imernational Financial Reporting Standards approved in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards
ond publicntions spproved by the Saudi Orgenization Chanered and Professional Accountumiz” Tho
approved international standards are the ntermational standards as issued by the International Counsil Lo
addition o the requiremenis and disclosures added by the Authonity 1o some of these standards, pecording
to what was staled in the Intemational Financial Reporting Standords approval document, and what 1s
meant by standards and dumb versions is what the Saed Organization for Auditors and Accountants adopts
in terms of technical standards and opinions for toples not covered by international standards, such as the
subject of Zakat |

1-1 Accounting convention | Busis of measurement
These Consolidated Financial Stutements have been prepared using the acerual basis of accounting and the
concepd of going concern on the histerical cost basis except for the following materinl [tems in the
Consolidated Statement of Anancial position:

» The defined benefit obligation is recognised mt the present value of fulure obligations using the
Progected Unit Credit Method
* [nvesiment ot Fair Valoe through Profit or Loss (*FVTPL").

13
These consolidated Gnancial statements are presented in Sauds Buiyals (SR} which i the Group®™s functional
curreney, unless otherwise indicated.

14 Basks Tor consolidating the consilidated lnancial sialemenis
These Consolidated Financinl Statements comprising the Consolidated Statement of Foancial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loas and other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes 1o the Consolidated Finoneial
Statements of the Group include pssets, labilities ond the regulis of the eperations of the Company and s
subsidiary, as set out in note (1) The Company and its subsidiary are collectively referred 1o ns the
“Giroup”.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has righss 1o, variable returns rom s invelvement with the entity and has the ability o affect those
retumns through its power over the entity. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only il the
Ciroup has:
o Power over the investee (1€, existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee),
Exposure to risks, and has rights (o variable retums from its invalvement with the invesiee,; and
The ability o use 15 power aver the investee to afTect ils retums,

Crenerally, there 15 a presumpiion e a majersty of voung cights resulis in control. To suppon tis
presumption and when the Group has less than o majority of the voting or similer rights of an
mnvestee, the CGroup considers all relevant Tcts and circumstances in assessing whether i@ has power
over an investes, including:

The contractunl arrengement(s) with the other vote holders of the investes.
Faghts arsing Trom other comtrmciuanl nmangemenis.
& The Group’s voting rights and potential voting righis.

The Group re-assesses whether or nod it comrels an investee 11 facts and circumstances indecate that there
are changes o one or more of the three elements of control assessing.

1"




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fur the year ended Becember 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Non-controlling interest are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets

at the date of acquisition with fair value,

Mon-controlling interests in the results and equity of not wholly ewned subsidiaries are shown separately

in the consolidated stafement of profit or loss and other compreliensive icome consobidated statement of

:hnn_lgl:i in equity and consolidated statement of financinl posilion.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which group control until the date on which control ceases.
The group uses the acquisition method for accounting when transfemng control W the group, where:

#  The cost of the poguisition s measured at the fair value of the specific assels aoquined.

*  The excess of the cost of acquisition plus the fur value of non-controlling interests over the net value
of the identifinble tssets sequired as goodwill (4 recorded in the consalidnted statement of Mnancinl
position,

*  Acquisition-rolated costs are recorded when incurred and included in administrative expenses,

MNCI 15 measured at their proportionate share of the sequiree’s identifiable net assets m the date of
acquisition. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holdets of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
eontrolling interests having a deficit balance,

All intra-group assets and liabilities, unrealised income and expenses and cash flows relnting o
transactions arg eliminated in full on consolidation. When necessary, adjusiments are made 1o the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their secounting policies in line with the Group's accounting polictes,
The Company and its subsidiary have the same reporting periods

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, 18 accounted for as an equity
IFARSACTION.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, The following is done:

De-recopnires the assets (including the goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,

Dee-recognizes the carrving amount of any pon-controlling interest,

De-recopnizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;

Fecogmizes the Tair value of the consideration received;

Fecognizes the fnir value of any mvestmen! remaning;

Recogmizes any surplus or deficit in the condensed consolidated stmement of profit or loss;

The paremt company's share in the previously listed componenis of other comprehensive profit is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained eamings, os appreprinte end required when the group eliminnes
the directly related assets or linbilitizs.

A BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES
M ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED

The following are the significant accounting policics applied by the Group wn prepanng its consolidated
financial statements 10 all accounting periods presented

3=1-1 off nssets and linbiliti current / non
Assels!
The Group presents assets and hobilites in the Dinancial sintements based on their clissification nto
current / nomeurtent items, The asset is current when!
¢ s expeeted 1o be realized or there is an intention 1o be sold or consumed it in 8 normal operating
ieycle, or
It is held primaonly for ithe purpose of trading, or
= [t i3 expected to be realized within 12 months afler the financial reporting s period, or
e (ash or eash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used fo seite a lability for at
lenst — 12 months after the financial reporting period.
The group classifics all other asscts as non-curment Asscls,

A habality 15 current when:
#  [Lisexpecied to be settied in a normnl opersting evele, or
# [t 1s held pomarily for the purpose of trading, or
o 113 duoe to be settled within twelve months after the financial reporting period, or
#  There 18 no unconditional right to defer the senlement of the liability for ot least twelve months
ofter the financinl reponting period
The group classifies all ether labilities as non-current assets

-15-



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
{A Saodi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated)

3-1-1 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents consist of balances
with banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturities of three months or less
and other short-term highly liguid investments, if any, whose original maturity 15 three months or Less
than the date of its crention and are uvailable 1w the Group without any restrictions. 11 also includes
overdraft accounts that are an integral part of the Group's cash management and are expecied 10 be
changed from overdrifis (o current accounLs,

3-1-3 Inventery

Inventory is stated at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower Cost is determined as following:

Raw materials, consumables and spare parts: Purchase cost on o weighted average basis Cost of
purchase includes the purchase price, custom duties, and the other takes otherwise, these which
refundable, |ater, from tax aothorities and the costs of transportation and handling and other costs
altributable directly to the acquisition and deduct the trade discounts and the reductions and other
similar {1ems when determines the cost of purchase,

Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials end labor and a propertion of
manufacturing everheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs
The net realizable value consists of the estimated selling price less incremental completion costs
and an appropriatc share of selling and disiribution expenses, Any decrease in the cost of
mventories o the net realizable vilee should be recognized as an expense In the petiod in which
the reduction occurs. Any reversal of impairment should be recognized in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which the reversal occurs,

Provision is made, whene necessury, for any slow moving or defective inventory and the cost of the
inventary Is recognized as an expense and recognized in the cost of revenue,

314 Property, plant and equipment

A

Recognition and measarement

Property, plant ond equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and sccumulated
impainnent losses, if any. The cost of acquisition of the asset includes all costs related to the
acquisition of the asset. In addition to any other costs directly related (o placing the equipment, as
well as dismaniling and removing items and restoring the cquipment 10 its original condition,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when i1 is disposal or no luture economic
benefits ure expected from its use or disposal,

Giains and losses on disposal of an item of propenty, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing net disposal proceeds with the carrving amounts of property, plant and equipment and
wre recognized net of other income (expanse) in profits or losses

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it results in increase in the future economic
benelits and can be reliably measored.

Loan fnancing costs are capitalized o finance the creation of qualifying assels during the yvear
required to complete and process the assets for the purpose

Where significant portions of property, plant and equipment have different usetul lives, they are
then pecounted Tor a8 ilems of property, plant and equipment,

The cost of replacing an important pan of the item of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in the carrying amount of the ilem if potential future economic benelis are probable to Qow 1o the
Group and these costs can be messured reliably. The camying amount of the fem being
derecognized is eliminsted when significant parts of the property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced aver time, The Group recognizes such items as individual assets with specifie useful
fives and is depreciated accordingly, Similarly, when performing & major cxamimation, its cost is
inchsded in the carrving amount of the property and equipment as o replocement if the inclusion
entenaare met. Other repair and maintenance costs are included in the profits or losses as incurred.



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended Decembor 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated )

B- Depreciation

The cost less estrmated reswdusl value is deprecinted on u straight-line basis over the useful lives of
the assets, the depreciation of some production line is made on the basis of the amount produced
during the period astributable to the amount estimate to produce the asset during its wseful live and
for the remnining property and plant and equipment, the depreciation s made on the basis of the
useful live of the asset Land and capital works under construction are nol depreciated as follows.

Lseful live
Buildings on leased land 33vears or lease comtract whichever iz shorier
Machinery and equipment 10-25  years
- Vehicles 4 years
Fubniture and office equipment 5 years
bt and pieces T wvears

r
esidual value and useful lives of the asset are reviewed in case there are indications of sipnificamnt
changes since the date of the last annual report and adjusted for future impact, when necessary.

C- works in pro
- Capitul work in progress at the end of the vear includes certain assets that have been acquired but
are ol ready for the intended use. Capital work is carried al cost less any mpairment recorded in
value. These assets are transterred 1o related asset classes and deprecinted when they ane ready for
bse,

F1-5 |Iotpngible Asseis

= Imtangible assets (exchuding goodwill) nequired separmely are measured on initial recognition at
codt. Fellowmng imitial recognition, mtangible assets are caried ol cost less occumulated
amariiEmion and impairment [osses, (7 any.

- The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed 1o be cither specific or indefinite

- Assets produced intermnally (excluding capitabized development costs) are not capitalized and
related expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period m which they are
incurred.

[ntangible assets with finkte useful lives are amortized over the ugeful economie life,

- The residual values of tnfangible assets with fimite lives, their useful lives and fmpairment
indicators of the ¢end of each Anancial year are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication
that the intangible assed may lave been impaired,

- Changes in the expected useful life or expected pattern of future economic benelits embodied in
the assel are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted prospectively, if necessary,

Amartizntion expense for intangible assets with fimte lives is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprebensive income under expenses category in line with the function of
intangible asscts.

- Subsequent expenditure is capitulized only when the [uture economic benefits associnted with the
expenditure nre likely to flow 1o the Group and the expenditure can be measured relinbiy,

= Gpins o Iosses arising on de recogmtion of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between net sales proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and arc included in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is disposed of



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
{A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Riyval unless otherwise stated )

3-1-h

317

Borrowing costs

-

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
barrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly atiributable 1o the estoblishment of on asset are capitalized using the
copitalization rate up w the stage in which the work necessary 1o prepare the qualifying asset for
the intended purpose is effectively completed and are then charged w profit or loss, In the case of
specific loans, all such costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that require o substantiol period of tme for s indended preparmtion or sale, such coss e
copitalized ns part of the cost of the related assel. All othér borrowing costs nre expensed in the
period in which they scour,

Leases

The determination of whether the arrangemients are (or its substance] 15 o lease based on the substance
of the agreement of the beginning of the contract, An arrngement is sssessed (o determination
whether its performance depends on the user of assels or that the arrangements transfer the right 10 use
the esset even if the asset is no explicitly identified in the arrangement

The Growp as s lessee

The Group recognises a nght-of-use asset and o corresponding lease linbility refated to the loase
contracts which the requirements of [FRS (16) apply where:

Ench n rental payment is distnibuted between the linbilities and the finance cost.

The hOnance cost & chorged to profit and loss over 8 lease torm where be achieved o siatic
periodical commission rate on the rempining balance of the lability for each period.

The night of usc assets was amortized with the cost that involving the following:

® The amount of initial mepsurement for leese labilitres.

» Any lease payments which were paid at or before the commencement date of the contract less
any received rental incentives.

# The costs of renewal, {ifany)

The lease habilites comprize the following net present values of payments:

* The fixed payments {including the fived payments in its substance) less any debit incentives.

« The variable lease payments which based on an indicator or rate. (if any)

* The amounts which expected to be paid pursuant to the guaranitees of the residual value,

# The price of exercising of the option of purchasing if o lessce sure ressonably from exercise that
option if any.

# Pavments of the fines rélated to terminate o lease contract, if the lease term reflects reasonably
of exercizing the lessee for that option (if any),

The payments of a lease contract are discounted by using un ingrémental borrowing rate which

represents the price that would pay by the lesses 1o bormow the necessary funds. to obvtain an asset

i a similar vilue in & similar economis enviromment with similar conditions and 1wrms.

The paymients refated to shon-term leases and low-value leases are recognised as an expense in

profit and loss. The short-term leases gre the leases that have o lease period 12month or less.

Eenepotintion on the lepse coptroct’s ferms 15 made on an individual basis and contains o large of

conditions and different terma, The arrangements of the lease confracts do nol impose any pledges

but the right-of-use assets do not use as & guaraniee for the purposes of borrowing



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated )

3-1-8

u a lessor
= The determination of whether the agreements are (or its substance) is a lease hased on the
substonee of the agreement ol the beginmng of the contract,

- Each lesse (1T nny) are classified as & finance wase or an operating lease, where the regard of »
lease i5 a finance lease or an operating lesse depends on the substance of a transaction, not on the
form of the contract.

= A lease is clessified o2 o Gnance lease if o lease that fronsfers substantiolly all the risks and
rewnrds incidental 1o ownership of an underlying assel

- A lense is-classified as an opernting lease thal does nod wransfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the owner ship of an underlying asset.

= The lease incentives or any increase in the leose contracts are included as part of the total liabifity
from the lease contract and are calculated on a straight line basis over the period of the contract.
Contingent rentals are included as revenue in the period in which they are calculated.

Impairment of non-financial asseis

* Al each reporting date, the Group reviews non-financial assets (other than inventones) o determine
whether there is any indication or circumstances that indicate an impairment loss or reversal of
impaimment loss. I this indicaior exisis, the recoverable amount of the asset s estimated 10 determine
the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of the impainment loss, if any.

» When aver it is not possible (0 estimate the recoverable amount of an individual aseet, the group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, Where o
reasonible snd consistent basis for allocation can be determined, the joinl nssets are pllocated o
individual cash-genemting units or otherwise disinbuted 1o the smaller group of cash-generating
units for which o reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be detenmined

» The recoverable amount of the azs¢t is the fair value of the nsset or cash generating unit less costs to
sell or value in use - whichever s higher,

® The recoverable amount of an individual asset is determined unless the asset generates cash flows
that are substantially independent of the expenditure genemated from other assels or groups of assets.

= When the currying amount of on asset or cash generating unil exceeds its recoverable amount, the
assel i3 congidered impatred and 665 volue 5 roduced 1o i recovernble gmount,

* In assessing the value in use, estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their present velue using
the pre-tax discount rate, reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and the
specific risks of assets for which future cach flow estimates have not been ndjugted.

# When deterinining the fair value less costs to complete the sale, recent market transactions are taken
mto consideration and, if such transagtions can't be identified, nn appropriate valuation model s
used,

® An impairment loss s recogmized directly in profits or losses unless the relevant assets wre carmed a
their revalunted amount. The impaimment loss is treated in this case as o revaluation decrease,

» Where the impairment loss 15 reversed subsequently, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
peneraling unit) & tncreased to the revised estimate of s recoverable amount so that the carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined hud the impairmen
loss been recogmited value of sssets (or cosh-genemting unit) i prior years. An impainment loss is
recopnized directly i the profits or losses unless the relevant assets are carried a1 their revalyoted
amount, The impairment loss is recognized in this case ns an increase arising from revaleation.

= Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and Intangible assets that are not available for use after
being reviewed for impainment at least annually snd whessever there is an indication of impairment.

o |9




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Sawdi Joint Steck Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the yvear ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

318 Fair value mensurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly (ransaction beétween markel participants at the mensurement doate. The foir value
meazuremient iz based on the assumption thial the transaciion for w o sell the assel or tmnsfee the
linhtlity take place either:

»  Through the principal market of the asset or liability, or
o  Through the market most beneficial to the asset or liability in the absence of o principal
markel.

The principal market or market must be the most aecessible by the group,
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions used by market
purticipants when pricing the asset or lishility on the assumption that the parties in the market act
i the best ¢conomic interest
The measurement of the fuir value of a non-financial asset wkes in consideration the ability of the
parties in the market 1o provide economic benefits by using the asset fo obtain the best benefit
from it or to sell it o dnother party in the market for the best benefit
The Group uses valuation technigues that are spproprinte to the cireumstiznces and have sufficient
data 10 mepgure far vilee, moximize the use af observable deta and redoce the wme ol non-

ohservable relafed duta, where:

* The responsibility 1o supervise all important fair volue measuremenis 15 the responsibility of
mamsgement, nclwding the third level of fur values.

o  The management reviews significant non-observable mputs and valuaton adjustments
periodically.

#  The management evoluntes the evidence obtpined from o third party to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the reguirernents of the IFRS adopted in Saudi Arabia, including the
level in the hicrarchy of fair value for which such pssessments should be classified il
information is wsed by o third party, such as brokers' prices or pricing services, are used o
mepsure fair values.

The Group uses obzervable market data to the extent possible when measuring the fair value of an
assef or linbility. The fiir values are classified o1 different levels in the fair value hierarchy based
on the inpats used in the valuation technigques as follows:

o Level | : Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 Inpus other than prices listed in fevel | for sdentical assets and habilines that could
be observed for the assets or liabilities other than direct or indirect ( as derivate of the price of
the adjusiment]
e Level 3 Inputs for assets and [abilities that are not based on observable marker data
junebservable input ind insctive market)
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an ssset or lability are at different levels of the fair
vitlug herarchy, the Tair value measurement is fully classified ot the siome level of the fir value
hierarchy as the lowest level of inputs is essential for full measurement
Tranafers are recogmzed between the levels of the fur value hierarchy ot the end of the reporiing
period in which the change occurs.

alt =
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3-1-10 Financial instruments

Al

)

Financinl instruments are recognized and measured in accordance with the requirements of [FRS
L9 "Financial Instruments”, which defines and addresses the classification, measurement and de-
recognition of financial assets and financinl linbilitics and certmn contracts for the purchase or
sale of nonsfinancial ems. The defadls of the relevant secounting policies are seil oul below.
Initinl recognition - financisl assets and loancial Babilities

Financial assets and labilities are recognesed when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
of the instrument

Inital measurement

Cninitinl messurement, except for trode receivables that do ool include 8 mnteriol financing
compenent, the financial asset is measured at foir volue through profit or Joss. The transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the finoncial asset are recognized in profit or loss.
If the financial asset 18 not ot fair value theough profit or oss, the financial neset is measured ot its
fair value plus rangaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Trade receivables that do not have o material [inancing component or which are less than |2
months old are measured ol the tansaction price in sccordance with IFRS{15).

Clussification and subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of pon-derivative Noancial assets depends on their classification
into the following messurement calegones basad on the business maodel in which the financial
assels are managed a5 well as the contractual erms of cash flows:

Fioancial assets at Falr vidue through profit or loss:

Financial essets at fair volue through statement of profit or loss are measured at the end of cach
reporting peniod withou! any transaction costs that the Group may 1neur when selling or disposing
of any finoncial asset i the future.

All financial assets that are not classified os measured at amortized cost or at foir value through
ather comprehensive income nnd will be described below are measured at fair valwe through
profit or loss, This mcludes all other derivative financial assets, On mitial recognition, the Group
i5 entitled to finalize financinl assots that otherwise meet the measurement requirements -at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprebensive income as financial assets at fair
vithse through profit or loss.

If the Group does so, it omits the sccounting mismatch that may anse in one way or another o
significantly reduces mismatches.

Financinl assets at fuir value through other comprehensive Income;

They are either (debt instruments ot far value through other comprehensive income) or (oguity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income)

Financisl assets ol fuir value through other comprehensive income are measured ot the end of
each reporting period and the tmnsaction costs incurted by the Group ame derecognieed when the
aszel 15 disposed of in the future

Investments in debt mstrements are measured ot fair value through other comprehensive incomse
if e Tollowing two conditions are mel and are nol measured a1 fir value through profic or loss:

¥ T is maintaned within o business model that is verified by collecting controctunl cash Dows
and selling finoneial assets. And

¥ Their contraciunl perieds are established on specific cash Now dates thot represent only
pavments of principal and interesi on the pnngipal of the amount outstanding.

Upon derecognition of financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognied in other
comprehensive meome 5 reclassified 1o the statement of profit or loss, However, the fair value
gains or losses are not reclassified to profit or loss in the case of equity instrumenss.
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) Financial assets measored of amoriized cosi:
The financial asset should be measured an amortized cost using the effective mierest method if the
following conditions are mel;
I} The financial assel 5 relamed within the business moedel, which s intended to hold Ainapcial
assets from the collection of contractual cash flows; and
2) The contractual terms of the financial asset on specific dates result in cash Nows thet are
principal and intereést payments on the principal outstanding,
Financial assets measured ol amortized cost include tmde and other receivables,
After initinl measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured of amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method less impairment (15 any). Amaortized cost is ealeulated by
taking into consideration any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
thtegral part of the effective interest rate. Effective interest rafe amortization s included in
financing revenue in profit or loss. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss,

The method of recognizing and presenting the profits or losses resulting from classifying

the above categories is as Tolliws:

AMeasurcment class

..........

Financial assets of
amortized cos

The following items are included in statement of profit or

loss:

 Iniereést income using the effective interest g
miethod.

¥ Expecied credit losses (or oreversal of  losses)
Limpairmeni anid reversal|

" Fomign exchange going or losses

When the finuncial  assel is derecognized (Disposed),

the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss

Dbt instnuments o for
vitlue through other
comprehensive income

Gipans and losses are recognired in other comprehensive
income  gxcept for the following items which are
recognized in profit or boss in the same monner as for |
financial assets measured at amortized cost

® Inierest ingome using the effective interest method.

® Expecied credit Josses  [or reversal of  Josses),

[ Impairmend and reversal)

* Foreign cechange gains or losses
When the finoncial assan i de-recopnized [Dercoognition)),
the cumulative gain or loss fn the other comprehensive
ineomie 15 reclassilied (o profit or loss

Investment in equity
Instruments at fair value
thiroasgh other
comprehensive incmne

Cining or Fossed grg recognized in other comprehensive
ineoama

Dividends from these investments must be recognized as
income in profit or loss unless they clearly represent the
pavment of part ol the cost of the iInvesiment,

The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are
not reclassified to profit or loss under any circumstances.

[nvestment at faur value
!h.fuugll pmﬁl o |loas

Giains or 1osses arising either from subsequent measuremen!
or from derecognition are recognized in profit or loss.
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Reclassification

When _ond onfy when s entity changes its business madel in the managing of financial azsets, i
must reclassily all iis affected financial assets in sccordance with the sbove classification
FOQUIrSIEnEs.

Derccopnition of linancial assels

The de-recognition of & financial asset (or, as appropriate, o pant of a fnancial asset or & part of a
group of similar finencial asseis] (which mean its disposal fram the financial position staement) when
the cash flow rights commented of the asset is done or when the financial asset (s transfer the finnncial
nssets or all its rsks and benefils 1o snother party. The difference i carrying amount 15 recognized in
the profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group nssesses the probability of ohjective evidence that the financial assel
measured at cost or amortized cost may be impaired. Impatrment arses when one or more events
geeur, if the el recognition of an nesef has an mmpact on the estimated future cash flows of a
financial assel or a group of fnancial assets that can be relinhly mensored.

IFRS {9) requires the Group to apply a model to messure expected credit losses in respect of
impairment of financinl assets, Credit ¢venl ocourrence 18 not necessary o include credit losses
Instead, using the expected credit loss medel, the entity calculaies the expected credit losses and
changes as of cach reporting date

The expected credit loss should be measured and made a provision to it either in the wmount
equivalent [o:

i) 12 months of expecied losses or

i8] Long term expacted losses.

# If the credit risk of the financial instrument is oot substantially mcreased from the beginning,
then o provision equal to the expected loss of 12 months is created.

= [ pther cases, provision should be made for long-term credit losses.

For trade receivables and other recervables, the Group has applied the simplified method in

accordance with the Sundird and caloulates credit losses according 1o credit loss forecasts over the

life of the financial asscts where:

*  The Group has established a motrix of provisions based on the Group's past experience with
respect 1o credit losses, and adjusted for future factors retating to debtors and the econoimic
environment.

= Impairment losses relating (o trade receivables are presented separately in profit or Toss.

Except for investments in debt instruments menasured through other comprehensive income, the
Carrving value of the asset is redused through the use of the provision account and the amount of the
loss is recognized in profil or loss. Interest income continues to be depreciated using the interest rate
used 1o discount future cash fows to measure impairment foss. Loans are written off with the loan-
related proviston when there 15 no realistic prospect of future recovery and all guarantees nre realized
of transferred o the Group.

= In respect of investmens in debt insrruments measured through other comprehensive income,
lhe provision for the loss of other nun:lpr:hl:n.':'w: mcome accumulated it the investment
revaluntion reserve 58 recognised and does not reduce the Corrying value of the financial asset in
the staterment of financial position,

* Inany case, if in a subséquent vear, the emount of the impairment loss increased or decreased
because of an event occurning afler the imparment was recorded, the previously recognized
mmpuirment loss s increosed or reduced by adjusting the provision scooumt, [T o subsequent
write-down is reversed, the reversal i recognized in profit or loss
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Financial Habilities

The Group’s financial liabilices include accoumts payvables and aceruals armount

Initial messurement

Financial liabilities are mitially recognized as financial labilitres at fair vabue through profit or
foss and other comprehensive income and as loons, sdvances and pavables as appropriate,

All financial lizbilities are initially measured at fair value ond in the case of long-term leans,
advances and accounts payable, net of direct costs related to the transaction. {Le. except for
financial labilities at fuir value where tronsaction costs direotly related to the scquisition of
financial linbilities are recopnized directly m profit or loss).

Classification and subsequent measurement

A)

B)

At amortized cost

The entity must classify all financial Habilities at smortized cost and subsequently measured,

excepd for:

1) Fmancial labtlities at fair value through profit or loss.

2} Financinl linbilities that arise when o finencial asset thar 5 ungualified  for
de-recognition is derecognized or when the method of continuing mvolvemnent is applied
{the copfinuing cormelation mehod)

3} Fmancial guaranies contacis,

4) Obligations or commitments to provide a loan al an interest rate lower than the market
price and not measured at fodr value through profit or loss.

The podentinl price (consideration} recognized by the acquirer in a bisiness combinaton thai

is in accordance with [FRS (3). This potential price i subsequently measured at fair value

with chunges recognized in profit or loss.

All financial liahilities of the Group are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, Galns and losses are recognized in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the liability 15 derecognized through the amorization of the
effective intcrest rate.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into consideration any discount or premium on
ncquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pant of the effective interest rate method.
Effective interes! mate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or
liss,

Guains or losscs on financial liabilities measured at fair value (which are nol part of the
overall hedging relationship) are recognized in profit or loss. Except for gains or losses on
certain financinl lobilities that are designated ot fair valwe through profit or loss when the
Ciroup is reguired 1o pssess the affects of changes in eredit nsk pssocisted with linbilities in
oiher comprehensive icome,

Financial lHabilities ot fair valoe through profit or loss
Financial linbilities included in this category include
I. Liabilities held for trading
2. Liabilities derivatives not desiginted as hedging instruments,
1. Linbilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
After initm] recognition, the Group measures financial linbilities at fair value and recognizes
changes in profit or loss.
Usunlly Gams and losses on fimancial habilitics desigaated at Tair value are recogmzed in
profit or loss ms follows:
1. The amount of the change o the Gir value of 8 fnancal lability that 13 atrrbutable (o
changes in credit risk is recognized in other comprehensive income.

2, The residual value of the change in the foir value of the Ooancial lability 15 recopnized

profit or loss.
« i =



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Soudi Rival unless otherwise stated )

) Financial liabilities other than finnncial labilities at fair value through profit or loss
Frnancial habibibes are measured of amortized cost vsing the effeetive interest mie

o Reclassilication
The Group cannot reclassify any financial lability.
#  Drerecognition of financial linbilitics
A financial liability s derecopniesd when it 15 fulfill, cancelled or terminated. When an
existing financial liability is repluced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms or when the terims of an existing obligation are substantially modilied,
such o replacement or modification is treated as o derecognition of the original financial
[iability while recopnizing the new obligation. The difference between the relevant
Carrying valucs is recognized in profit or loss
o Set-off of financial instruments (set-off between financial assets and NHabilities).
Fimuncial assets and lnancial liabilities wre offset ond recorded net in the statement of
financial position only when the following conditions wre mer:
1- The Group has a statutory legal right 1o set-off the amounts recognized in assets and
frabilities.
2~ The mtention of the Groug 1o settle on a net basis or to recognize the asset and settle
the obligation simultanecusly.

3-1-11 Revenues recognition
= Revenuwes arising from contrects sre recognized ond measured in sccordance with the
requirements of IFRS (15), unless they are within the scope of other standards

- Revenye iz measured on the basis of the compensation specilied in the contract with the
customer, with the exceplion of amounts collected on beball of other parties, The Group
recognizes revenue when transferring control over the products or services provided to the
customer,

= IFRS 15 is applied either with full retrospective or amended application where:

= The Group applicd the Intemational Financial Reporting Standard in its financial stalements
staming from 1 January 2020 in a way that assesses the cumulative effect, and the Group did not
amend s financial statements for the peesemed comparative periods in accordance with the
exemptions svuilable.

= Where the Group records revenue from contracts with clicnts based on the following five steps:

1) Determining the contract with the client: A contract is an agreament between two or more
parties that results in mandatory rights and obligations and clarifies the criteria that must be
el for each contract.

b Defining performance obligations in the contret: A performance obligation is a promise to
the customer according 1o 1he contract in order to transport goods or provide services 10 the
CHSTOITIET,

¢} Determining the transaction price; The transaction price s the price expected from the Group
in exchange for the transfer of goods or services agréed upon with the customer, excluding
the amounts collected on behall of third parties

d}  Allecatng the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract
that contming more than one performance obligation, the Group distributes the transaction
price to each performance obligation by an estimated amount of the price expected 10 be
collected from the goods or services in exchange for the performance of the performance
obligation.

£ Revenug is recognized when (or when) the Group fulfibls the performance obligation.
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The Group Rilfills the performance obligation énd recognizes revenue over the term of the

contract i3 fulfills any of the following requiremenis:

1) The client obtams the benefits resulling from the performance of the Group and the
consumption of those benefits at the same time, or

bl The Group's performance leads 1o the crestion or improvement of an asset that is under the
customer's contral st the time of improvement or creabion, of

¢} The Group’s performance of the obligation is not originally for other uses of the Group, and
the Group has the right 1 collect the amount for the completed performance to date that is
enforceable,

For performance obligotions where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognized ol the time the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group fulfills a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or services,
then the Grroup creates un asset based on the contract in exchange Tor the price it received as n
resall of the performance. I the amount of the bitled price to the customer exceeds the amount of
the listed revenues, this increases the commimment of the ¢ontract.

Revense 13 measured o1 the fair value of the price received or receivable, taking into account the
contractual payiment terms specified,

Revenue 15 included in profitor loss to the extent of the expected Mow of economic benefits to the
Group, with revenues and costs - where applicable - being able to be measured relfably.

The Group's revenue is represented in:
»  Revenue from Products Sales:
= Revenue resulting from the sole of goods s recopnized and an tnvoice is 1ssued when all
of the following conditions are met;
¥ Transforring the significent risks and rewards of ownership of goods 1o the buyer.
¥ The Group does not retain the right to continuous administrative intervention to the
degree that is usunlly associated with owmership nor with actual control over the
sobd gousds,
¥ The amount of revenue can be measured relinbly.
¥ It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the trunswction will ow to
the Group.
¥ The costs meurred or to be bomne by the Group in connection with the transaction
can be measured ina relible manner.
*  The Group does not have any loyally programs under which points are awarded to
customers, and therefore no deferred revenue is recognized for the items sold,
= Elemients of financing
The Group does not currently have or expects ot the present time any contracts with
clients for routine sales or products where the peniod between transferring the promised
products or services to the custamer and paying the customer exceeds one year, As o
result, the Group is not currently making an adiustment to any lransaction rates
regarding the time voalue of money. However, if pny suech situation is {dentified, the
relevant amounts are remeasured in arder 10 adjust the tme value of the funds,

= Warranty obligations
The Group provides guaranices regarding the sold goods when certain terms and
conditions are applied, und sccordingly the Group is subject to the requirements of the
[ntemational Financial Reporting Standard No. 15 with regard to deferring the
recopnition of revenues and recording contract obligations.

I
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3-1-12 Costs Of Revenue
= All expenditures are recognized on an scorual basis, and operating costs are recognized on the
hasis of historicol cost. Production costs and direct manufacuring expenses are classified as cos
of sales, This includes raw materials, dicect labor and other related indivect costs. Other costs such
as selling costs are recorded as selling and distribution expenses, while all other remaining
expenses are shown as general and administrative expenses.

3-1-13 Expenses
- Belling and marketing expenses and general and admmistrmbive expenses include direct and
indirect costs that are ned specifically considered part of the cost of revenues .
= Beliing and morketing expensés in those expenses ersing from the Group's underiving sabes and
markeling functions

= All expenses except for financial charges, amortization, deprecistion and impairment losses are
clissifed as general ond admimisimbive expenses

= Uither joint expenses are allocated between the cost of revenue, selling amd marketing costs and
general ond administrative expenses on a consistendt basis where necessary.

3-1-14 Income Tax and Sakal
Lkt
= Zakot ts calcolmted i accordance with zakat vegulations iscued by the Genernl Auwthority for
Zakat and Income in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("the Authority"” |

= Fakat is chorged to the profit or loss

= Any additional obligatons and settlement of adjusiments resulting from the Zakat, if any, tho
may become due upon completion of the assessment are recorded in the same fiscal yoar in which
the zakal gssessment is recognized

Withholding tax

= The Group deducts taxcs on certain transactions with non-resident entities i Soudi Arabin as
required in accordance with the applicable tax regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The
withholding tax relating to foreign payments is recognized as a lability.

Transaction tax
- Income, expenscs and assets are recognized net of trmnsuction tax (VAT), except for;

e Where the ransaction tax mewred in the purchase of an assel or service is nol
recoverable from the tax suthority, in which case the tmnsaction tax is recogmized as
part of the cost of the nsset or o par of the expense, where applicable

# Accounis recervable and payables that hove besn included wath the transaction tax
R,

2= The net mmount of the transsction tax recoverable Trom, or payable to, the tax suthonty 1
included as part of the recetvables or payvables in the stmtement of Nnancial position,

A-1-13 Foreign currency transactions and balances

= Foreign currency transactions are trenstated mto Sawdi Rivals (functional curmency ) at the rates of
exchange ruling at the date of the fnancial statements, Gams and losses ansing from changes in
exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss,

= Mon-monetary ibems that are messured o the historical cost of o foreien currency are retranslsbed
using the exchange rofes ot the date of the bl transsctions and are not subsequently adjested,
Nom-moneiary items that arg measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rutes &t the date that the far value was determined. The pain or loss arising on the
iranstation of non-mometary lems messured ar foir value 15 aceounted for in pecordance with the
recognition of profit or loss from changes w the fair value of the related ilem,

-7 .
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3-1-16 Provisions

A

r

Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a
past event and there i o possibility thot the Growp will be reguired to settle this obligation through
cash flows from outside the Group that reflect economic benefits and o significant estimate of the
smount of the obligation can be made. Where the Group expects o repay: some of all of the
provision - for example - under sn insurance conirnet, the pavment 15 recognized as an independent
wssel but only when the poyvment is actually confirmed, The expense for the provision is presented
in o profit or loss affer ooy payment,

11 the cffect of the ime value of money 1s significant, the provisions is determined by discounting
the expected future cash Aows st the current discount rate before the tx that reflects current market
nesessmedils of the lime valie of money mid (he risks relaved 1o the obligation. When the discount is
used, the excess of the provision is recognized as o resull of the passape of hme as the cost of
financing in the profit or loss.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. I a
Mow of required external resources with ecosomic benefits o setile the obligation iz no longer
probable, the provision is reversed.

{essation of operations costs (asse1s related 1o the removal of asses),

A provision to suspend operations s recognized when the Group is responsible for the restoration
or rehablitation of the land, The degree of suspension of the reguired opermitions and related costs
depends on the requirements of current faws and regulations.

Costs included and included in the provision include all expected cessation linbilities over the life
of the mssets. The provision for suspending operations is discounted 1o its present value and
capitalized as part of the essets under property, plant and equipment and 15 amortized over the life
of the asset.

Adjustments to the estimated amount and time of cash fows o discontinue operations are normal
wn light of the significani judgments and estimaies involved. These adjustments are recorded as an
morense in labilities offset by an increase in the related ascets. Factors nffecting these adjustments
tnclude;

*  Technology development
=  Regulutory requirements wnd environmental management strategics.
* Changes in the estimated threshold and expected costs of activities, including the effects of

inilagicn,

=  Changes in economic susiainmbility,

e L
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F1-17 ‘e beme

A. Defined Bencfit Programs

*  The Group provides a defined benefit plan to its employees in accordance with the Saudi
Labor Law. The Group’s net liability in respect of defined beneflit plans is calculated by
estimating and deducting the amount of future benefits acquired by the employee in the
carrent amd prior periods. The defined benefit obligations are calculated anmually by a
quilified actuary by the projected unit credit method, which akes into pccount the provisions
oof the Suudi Lobor Low' and Group policy,

= The delined benefit obligntion is periodically re-measired by independent actuores using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by deducting estimated future cash outflows and due to the lack of a deep market for
government bonds / skunk or corporate bonds / skunk in Saudi Arabia, the discount rane is
determined by reference to the Dow Jones Skunk Dividend. The net commission cost is
caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation snd
the fair value of the program assets.

*  The defined benefit obligation costs are calculated using actuarinlly defined retirernent costs at
the end of the previous year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations and any significant
ong-time events such as program adjustment, manpower reduction and reimbursement. In the
absence of such significant market fuctuations and one-time ¢events, the actuarial liability is
extended based on the assumptions st the beginning of the vear. I there are significant
changes in assumptions or arrangements during the initial period, they are considered for re-
mezasurement of these liabilities and related costs,

*  He-measurement ol the nel [sbility of defined benefit schemes consisting of setsarial gains
and losses is recognized directly in other comprehensive mcome. The Group calculates net
Interest by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined benefit obligation or
asset, Net interest expense and other related expenses are recognized in the profit or loss
progruns as defined in the profit or loss,

®  When the benefits of a program change or when the duration of the program is reduced, the
resulting change in benefit relating to the past service, profit or loss from the immediate
rechiction in profil or loss is recognized.

B. Short-term emploves benelits
A leability is recognized for Benefiis (o emplovees relating 1o wages and salaries including nan-
monetary benefits, annual leave, sick leave and wravel tickets during the peried in which the service
15 provided, as well as the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected o be pold for that service
on the basis that the related service may Performed. Recognized lighilities relating to short-term
employee benefits are measured at the amount that 13 not deductible and 15 expected to be pud for
the service rendered.

. Employee benelits after end of service
The Group pays retirement contributions 0 its Saudi employees to the Social Insurance Institution
and represents o specific contribution plan omd the payments are considered 05 expenses when
incurred
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3-1-18 Liabilities and_contingent assets

AL Contingedi lishalities are obligations that are likely 1o arse Tom past events and are conlinmed (o |
exist only through the cecurmence or absence of ane or more uncean future events third are nod
within the overall control of the Group. or on existing obligation that is not proved because it is
unlikely that there will be o need for the flow of resources to settle the obligation. In the event
that the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably enough, the Group does not
demmonsirale the coptingent liabilities but disclozes them in the finoncial statements.

B, The potential assets are nof recognized i the Mnancial statements but are disclosed when
economic benefits are probable.

A-1-19 Earnings per Share
— Basic eomnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net income piirbutable to the Group's
sharcholders by the weighted avernge number of shares outstanding during the vear
=  Reduced earnings per share 13 caleulated by dividing the profit attnbutable to the prowp’s
shareholdérs (after adjusting for inlerest on convertible preference shares) by the weighied
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of erdinary shares that will be issued when converting all potential reduced ordinary shares into

shares normal.
= Since the Group docs not have any convertible shares, the basic carnings per share equals the
reduced carnings per share,
3-1-200 Cash div roup's Sharcholders

The Company recognizes the obligntions related to the payment of cash dividends 1w the
Company's sharcholders when the distribution i3 approved

= In accordance with the Companies Law i Saudi Armbin, dividends are approved by the
shareholdors.

= Initial dividends, if ooy, ar¢ recorded vpen approval by the Board of Dircctors, The amount of the
penarderation 1\ recogmzed directly in equity.

3-1-11 Prepaid expenses

Prepaid long-term expenses (il any) are recognized ot cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

3-1-21 Segments Reports
= The business segment is o group of assets, operations, or facilitics:

11 Conducts its business in commercial activities through which it is possible w0 generane
revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses related to transactions. with
other components of the Group,

2} The results of its operations are analyzed on an ongemg basis by the Chief Operating Officer
in erder to make decisions related to resource allocation and performance evaluation; wnd
) On which sccurnte information is available separatoby.

= The geographical segment provides prodects or services within a spevilic economic environment
that 15 exposed to risks and returns that differ from operating sectoss in other economic
environments
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4

SIGNIFICANT JURGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparsiion of the finsncial ststements requires munsgement to moke judgments, cstimates and
assumptions thet affect the nmounts of revenses, expenses, asaets and linbilites disclosed nnd disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates may resuli
in résulis that masy require o material adjustment Lo the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities that will be
affected in future periods.

These estimates and assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances and are used 1o judge the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities that are difficult
1o obtain from other sources, Core estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis, An audit of
the accounting estimates is recorded in the period in which the estimates are revised or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revised estimates affect current and future periods,

Stgnificant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions have been made which have a material impact
on the financial staements as fisllowing:

41 Judgments
Compliance with performance abligations
= The Group has to nssess cach of i contracts with customers to detenmine whether performance
obligations have been met over time or 8f a specific tme in order to determine the appropriate
method of mcome recognition. The Group assessed this based on the sales and purchase agrecments
it hadd entered into with the customens and the provisions of the relevant laws and regulations .

= The Group has chosen to apply the input method in the transaction price distribution for the
performance obligation where the revenue is recognized based on the Group's efforts to meet the
performance ohligation, providing the best reference to the income actually eamed

Determine transaction prices

= The Group 8 required 1o a2l iransaction prices in relation to each of its contracts with customers. In
making such a judgment, the Group evaluates the impact of any variable price in the contract as a
result of discounts or fincs, the presence of any significant financing compenent in the contract nd
any non-motetary price in the contract.

Consolidation of subsidiaries

= The Group evaluated all investee companies to see il they exercise control over them in sccordance
with Internationnl Financial Reporting Standard No. (10) “Consolidated Financial Statements”, The
Crroup evaluated, among other things, the stake it owns, the applicable comtractual arrangements,
their capacity, and the limits of their participation in the related nctivities. In investee companies, o
determine whether they exercise control over them or not,

P )
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4-1 Estimates and assumptions
Defined Benelt Progrioms

The cost of the defined benefit programs and the present value of the obligation sre deternitned using
actuarinl voluations. The actuaral volustion includes many different assumptions that differ from
actual developmenis in the future. This ncludes the determination of discount rates, future salary
mcreases, mortality rates and the mate of movement of staff. As a result of the complexity and long-
term nature of the valuation process, the commitmenl of specific benefits is highly sensitive 1o
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are examined at the reporing date. The most
commonly used measurement eriteria are the discount rate and the future salary increase,

When determining the appropriate discount rate, management relies on market yield on high quality
corporale bonds. Future salary increases depend on futare inflation raics, seniority, promotion,
supply and demand in the employment marker. The morality rate s based on the mortality tables
available for specific countries. The extrapolation of mortality tables may change over time in
response to populstion changes, Funiber defails on stall bepefit obligations are provided in the
clantfication { 14),

Expected credil losses

Expected credit losses are measured as financial nssets measured & amonezed cost and requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and eredit
behavior.
There are a number of imponan provisions required o the application of accounting standards

= Define critenin for substantial increase in ceedil risk:

= Belecting appropriate formats and sssumptions (o measune expectod credit losses;

= Denermine the number and relative weight of fiture assumptions for each type of product and

market
= Create a pool of potential financiul ussets io measure air credit losses,

Productive useful [ife of property, equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives of propenty, equipment and investment properties
for depreciation. This estimale is determined afler tnking imo sccount the expected penod of use of
the asgel and the naturul damage. The management examines the estimated useful lives and the
method of deprecuntion pertodically to ensure that the method and duration ol depreciation are
consistent with the expected model of the ecconomic benefits of these assets.and changes in
depreciation expense ave adjusted in current and future periods, if any,

Inspairment of non-fiaancial assets.

The Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there are indications of impaimment of the non-
finuncial assets ot each reporting dute. Non-financial assets are selected 1o determine impairment in
the event of indications that the carrying amounts cannot be recovered |

When the value in use is calcolited, the mansgement estimates the future cash flows of the assel o
upit of cash and selects e sppropriate discount rate to calculite the present volue of these cash
flows,

Czoing concern

The management of the Giroup has assessed its ability to ¢continue on the basis of the going concen
and has concluded that it has the resources 1o continue its activity in the foreseeable future. In
addition, management is not aware of any matenial uncertainty that may cast doobt on the Group's
ability to continue in accordance with the poing concem. Consequently, the financial statements
hove been prepared on the basiz of the going concem,
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5 FROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT nei

51 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Buildings & Furnlture, Capital

Construction Machinery & Leaschold Fixtures &

an T kel Equipment Haprovements Vehicles Offfce Tuools Waorks in Tatal
land Equipment han

sl
As al _.1=|m|.;|r;-.-_l_ 2022 36894418 257,918,604 L1 E38.077 3619, 168 0.210,529 633 565 4AEL9TS J24. 54T A0
Additions during the year 10,030 98,415 - - 291,203 127.104 8,176,263 £.803.215
Transfer from Capitzl works in 11572 937 (11.522937) -
progress . cihist s 3
As at December 31, 2022 36,904 448 269,640,156 1LE3R0TT 3619168 9,501,732 THD 66Y 1,066,301 133,350,551
As il January |, 2022 ZE08T 230 135,647 413 £84.475 1 163,628 363,365 124,746 176,280,457
Depreciation for the year 1174844 3795760 355140 IT2,77R 366,519 81230 - 8,046,271
As at December 31, 2022 20272074 141,443,173 E 239615 FA36,606 B. 719,884 20597 - 184 327,128
Net Carrying value: R N
At December 31, 2022 7632374 128,196,983 10,598,462 182,762 771,848 574,693 1,066,301 149,023,423
At PBecember 31, 2021 HT9T.1RR 122.271,191 10,953,603 455,541 B47,164 SIEE1D 4412975 148, 266,480

= Munjor of Property , Plant. and Fquipment are pledpe (o The Saudi Industrial Development Fund (S1DF) oppasite the received loans (Note Na. 14),
Property , Plant, and Equipment as of 31 December 2022 includes assets which fully depreciated and still work, costing amounting to SR 77,213,889,

LEE
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Capltal works In progress represented in the following:

December 3, December 31,
2022 2021
Machinery and Equipment 135,051 3,531,725
Computer systems amnd programs HE 1,250 Ba1, 250
1.066,301 4412975
Deprectation of Property, Plant, and Equipment is charged as follows:
2022 021
Cost of Revenues 1614513 7020, 683
Selling and Distribution Expenses [81.243 177405
Cieneril and Administrative Expenses 250.215 319,321
Unused capacify - fi, 95 1
K. 046,271 7584, 360

BT o
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5-2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Lost:

As at Fpnary 1, 2020
Additions during the venr
Dsposals dunmg the year
Transfer from Capital works in
progress

As at December 31, 2021
Accumulated Depreciation:
As al fanuary 1, 2021
Depreciation for the vear
Aceumulated Deprecistion of
disposals

As at December 31, 2021
Net Carrving value:

As at December 11, 2021
Asoat December 31, 20240

Bulldings & Furniiure, Capital
Consiruction Machinery & Leaschold 3 Fixtures &
on Leased Equipment Impravements Vediche Office Tools Works in Taial
lamd Equipment e
36,535,140 259,760,459 11,735,968 3818 168 9,031,500 438,274 3,248,242 324,567,751
- 597,760 44,248 - 117,288 215.291 7042334 017,121
. (7,834,037) . (199 004 (4,499) a . (8,037.536)
159,278 5,394,422 57,661 : 66,240 - (5.877.601) -
36894418 257,918,604 11838077 3619168 9,210,529 653,565 4,412,975 324,547.336_
26,942,022 137,577,542 531,364 2997419 %,002,865 62.135 - 176,113,347
1,155,208 5,283,224 143,111 365,208 364,908 62,611 : 7,584,360
. (7.213,353) . (198 9949) (4,498) - - (7,416,850)
28,097,230 135,647,413 BB44TS 2,063,628 8,363,365 124,746 176,280,857
8,797,188 122.271,191 10,953,603 455540 B47,164 528819 4412975 148,266,480
9,593,118 122,182,917 11,204,604 320,749 1,028,635 176,139 3,248,242 148,454 404

= Major of Property , Plant, and Equipment are pledge to The Saudi Industnal Development Fund (SIDF) opposite the recerved foans.(Note No. 14,
= Property . Plant, and Equipment as of 31 December 2021 includes assets which fully depreciated and siill work, costing amounting to SR 75,225,579,
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Capital works in progress represented in the following:
December 31, December 31,

1021 2020
Machinery and Equipment 3,531,725 2,143,178
Leasehald Improvements - 374,439
Computer systems and programs RE1, 250 125,625
4,412,975 3,248,242
Depreciation of Property, Plant, and Equipment is charged as follows:
2021 2020
Cost of Revermes TGRS 6.341,31%
Selling and Dismbution Expenses 177405 156575
Creperal and Admimstrative Expenses 39321 303 549
Unused capacity fifs, 951 265 TR
7554160 T067,230

6 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS et

The Group leases two Lands from the Saudi Awthority for Induestrial Cities and Technology Zones,
“Moedon" in the second industrial ity in Riyadh, one of them is the company's factory und its subsidiary,
and other which is & residential building in the city. Contracts emd on Septembern, 202506, Contracts ane
rencwable after the approvals of the parties.

A) Cost: 31, 2022 31, 2021
As at the beginning of the vear G.4260,84] 9.426,84]
Addittons during the vear . .
9426841 9.426.841
Accomulated amortization:
As at the beginnmg of the vear 2. 480,750 |, S84 400
Amortization of the year - (Included in the cost of revenua} 496 150 496,150
2,976,900 1,480,750
Met Coarrying value 6,449,941 6,946,091
B) The liabilitics and deferred financing expenses resulting from these contracts are as follows
31 2 i 2
_ Cumemt  Noncurrent T
Linkalities from lease contracts TROG23 9,360,248 10,140,311
Deferred financing expenses B L) {2,446,739) (2,813.099)
413,663 6,913,549 7327212

31 December 20021

Linkilities from lease contracts TR0, 024 10,140,313 TETETR
Deferred financing expenses [1R6.059) (2813,090) 5,199,149)
193,965 T.327,221 7,721,187

=  The munimum [uture lease pavmenis (lease Dabilities) as a1 the date of the consolidated financial
posatiomn, n total , are as follows:
tninimunm

future lease

payments
2023 THOO24
2014 180,024
2025 THO.O24
After 2025 7,400,240
10,140,312

-
o5
=
-T

=M -
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7

INVENTORIES ,net

Faw muaterial

Wark In Progress

Finished goods

Spare paris

Materials and other supplics
Croods i Transit

Less: Allowance for slow meving flems

Nate  December 31, December 31,
2021
231,381,526 28,412,904
12,050,521 12,386,552
15,107,524 12,417,170
6,272,202 1.525,837
1,636,130 2.936,221
|,741,552 3,065,326
62,189,435 s, T, 030
(7-1) - 13,749,919)
62,189,455 62,994,111

T=1 The movement of the allowanee for slow moving items is as Tollows:

AL the beginning of the year
Ultilized during the year
Mo longer requires, during the year

TRADE RECEIVABLES (net

Trde receivables
Less

[mapainment loss

Daote

{5-3)

Degember 31,

December 31, 2021

2022
1,740,919 4,699,019
(3,749,919) 5
. {#50,000)
- 3,749,919

Diecember 31,

2022 2021
48,274 436 54,536,445
(2,036,167} (6,505 495)
46,238,319 48,030,950

81 As of December 31, 2022, trade receivables impaired with amounting of SR 2,036,167 {2021:5R
6.803,495).the impairment loss on trode receivables was calealuted aecording 1w the expected credit

loss in line with the requirements of IFKS 9

#-1 Trade receivables include amount of SR 19,627,866 (2021: SR 16,366,727) which not impaired. and
override their due date more than the normal collection cyele, but not impaired. The Group's
monagement believes that these amounts are fully collectible based onm the previous paymem
behaviors and a comprehensive analysis of the credit nisk of the customer, including the basic credic

ratings of the customer, if available.

B-3 The moverment of the mpasrment loss 15 as {ollows;

At the beginning of the vear
Impairment for the vear
Utilized during the vear

B4 The aging of trade recervables as at the date of the financinl statements were as follows;

0w 30 doys

from 31 to 60 days

from 61 o 90 davs

from 91t 365 davs
More than 363 davs

S

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
0 A0S 495 2,315,420
1,703,160 4,044,137

(6,472 488) (154,062)
2,036,167 6,805,405

Decem k]

2012

26,610,453 31,664,223

1E. 512,268 HAal4.99%
5,259,852 3,151,550
JHTT.734 329 4458
LOl4, 178 5,276,226

48,274,486 54,836,445
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O AYME 1] R RECEIVABLES
Decem 31 December 31,
2022 2021
Acorued bonus from supplicrs 7,150,348 6,639,019
advance puymenis to supplicrs A BTE6T0 4,990,651
Prepaid expenscs 1,802,238 &, 20, 50
Employee deposils 590,889 570,370
Yalwe added tox to parent company 17,338 1467355
Letters of credii 339632 372,042
Other T4 755 320,180
14,570,174 18,540,223
10 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Balance ot the beginning of the vear 6,513,192 37,080 404
Additions for the vear Rl 463 4 403,283
Diisposal for the yesr (3,738 463) (37,718,348
Ciain of Investments at fuir volue through Profit or Loss 2.163.171 [ H3E BaY
5,784,363 513,192

The balance of mvestimenis a8 of December 31, 2022 (G) s muinly represented in shares in hsted
company in the Sawdi financinl market. The Group has classified these investments through profit and
Ioas wecording to fair vabue. When sald during the fimancial period ending on December 31, 2027 {G)
profit 379,790 SR, the Group resulted in a profit of Saudi riyals, which was presented within the profits
from financiol investments at fiir value o the statement of profit or loss.

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

December 31, December 31,
021 2011
Cash at banks - current accounts 2667356 11,968,119
Cnsh on hand 22470 L6565
o I-..E_EI,IH ll.iﬁil;ﬂ_
IT SHARE CAPITAL:

On December 31, 2022{((H) the Company's capital was determined ot SR 115,000,000
(2021: 5RE 115,000,000), divided into 11,500,000 shares (2021; 11,500,000 shares), the valoe of each is SR
10, fully paid.

- 5 -



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
{A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vesr ended December 31, 2022

{Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated)

13 STATUTORY RESERVE:

In accordance with the Regulations for the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Company's Articles of
Association, the Company shall tranafer 10% of the net profit for the year to stotutory reserve until such
reserve reaches 30% of s capital,

T'he statutory reserve in the consolidated financial statements s related to the parest Company. This reserve
i& not avatlnble for distribution o sharcholders.

14 LOANS AND FACILITIES:

which sre menswred

Note  December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Suudi Industrial Development Fund Lean (14-1) 38,681 916 37 886,808
Bank foans & facilities i 14-2) 0610565 60,774,127
Total 00 20T 451 0, b, 015

14-1 Saudi Industrial Development Fund Loan:

During 2008, the parent Company signed an agreement with the Sauds Industrial Development Fund,
in total amounting SK 383 milhon to finance the expansion of the faciory, through the purchase of
production lines for the manufacturing of plastic cement bags and the expansion of the large bags
division and contaimer liner manufachuring machines, During 2021, the Parent Company signed on
agreement with the Saudi Industrial Dévelopment Fund, in total amounting SR 15,1 million to finance
the Purchasing new machines (o raise production capacity. During 2022, the Pasrent Company signed
an agreement with the Saudi Industrial Development Fund, in total smounting SR 5. 78 million 10
fimance the working capital.

During 2018, the subsidisry Company signed an agreement with the Saudi Industrial Development
Fund, in total amounting SR 35.3 million

Guarantees : the morigage of the _Propeny, Plant & Equipment - Noie § - in order 1o finance the
development of the fasctory's production lines,

and the details of loam 2 as follows:
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December 31,  Decemberdl,

- T ﬂ_ﬂ. m
TIJE-ll gramted boan BE. 137,000 82,357,000
Pazd from the lain CAE, 10T, 00 (42,707 (W)
Hemaining of granted loan A DM 39,650,004
Prepaid administrative fees {1,348, 084) (1,763,192)
Mewbalance at the end of the vear 35681916 37,886,808
Shhri-term loans 12,304 601 4 895 524
Lulﬂg -tz loans 26377315 32,991 282

strative fees poid in advance represent in amounts prid on the loan granted by the Spudi Industrial
Development Fund and are amortized over the periods of the loan repayment veéars. Amortieation
expenses charged to the smeement of profit or loss during the vear 2022 pmounted 1o SR 516,258
(2021: SR 499 32%),

= The Group charged additional expenses by the Saudi Indusirial Development Fund during the term
af the loan, which are project follow-up expenses, snd are charged to the statement of profits ar
losses on an accrual basis, Expenses charged to the stotement of profit or loss during the year 2022
amounted 1 SR 494 700 (202 1 SR 660,668)

14-2 Bank Loans:

Rivadh Bank

At April 9, 2017 {G), the Group signed an slamic finance agreement with Rivadh Bank, amounting 1o
SR 49 million, [r the purpose of parial finance of a progect to prsduce one of the manufictunng
products of the subsidiary thot was estoblished during 2017 for this purpose. Al March 28, 2008{G), the
Tlamic finance agreement was renawed and the fnance limit incressed to SK 72 million, in July 19,
2018 G}, the Group reduced the value of the financing by canceling the short<tesm temporary loan SR
21 million, to be the finance limit o 3K 51 million, At Macch 10, 2009, the group rased the value of
the finance by ncreasing the long-term factlities by SR 15 million and amending the credit limits for
short-term fagilities o bring the todal of the shorf-term facilities to SR 25 million, and the finance it
is SR 66 million, On May 15, 2022(G), the group rencwed the facititics and it expired on Apnl 13,
20248(G) , and the credit limit became 77.24 million Saudi nvals. Guaraniees : financing is secured by
sIEning » promissory note from the group for the total amount of financing.

Hank Adbilad

On Sepiember 16, 20185 the Group signed a Islamic-complant credi facilivy comtract with Bank
Albilad in the amount of 30 million Saudi rivals, for the purpose of obtaining o short-term Muornbaha 1o
finance the working capital of the company and iis subsidiary, The group renewed the Facility contragt
on April 1K, 202206, and the cradit limit became 1890 million Saudi riyols, Goarantees § financing is
secured by signing a promissory note from the group for the tolal amount of financing.

A=
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14-3 Loans & Tacilities presentation in the statement of Nnancial position:;

JLLLES Diegember December 31,
A1, 2023 2021
The nen-gurrent portion of leng-term loans
Smudi Indusirial Development Fund Loan (14-1) 26,377 315 32,991,282
Cither Rank Loans (14-2) 17647386 23689423
44,024,701 56,680,705
| rrent portion of long-ferm loans
Saudi Industrial Development Fund Loan {14-1) f.592.034 4,895,526
Oither Bank Loans {14-2) 12963179 B.426,923
19,555,213 13,322,449
Short term loans
Saudi Industrial Development Fund Loan {14=1} 571,567 -
Other Bank Loang {14-2) - 28,657,781
5, 712567 28,657 TR
69,292,481 U, 660,935
15 ACC N HER LIABILITIES:
December 31, December
2021 41, 2021
Accrued expenses 9.103,523 8.826.195
Advaneed payment from receivables [.756,201 2,353,143
Aecrued dividends * 5,149 274 5,044 274
Value sdded tax 287 822 524 564
Cher 129,535 608,862

16426355 _ 17462.008
* The dividends not claimed by the shareholders for the years from 2003 t 2007 amoumted 1o SR 5,149,274 as

at December 31, 2022 (G) (December 31, 20210G): 5R 5,149.274).

16 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

= The group operates a defined bepefit plan {as defined in IAS 19) that provides a total remuneration
when an employee leaves service i the Group, in line with the current [abor lww in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

= The amount of entitlement is culeulated nccording to the labor laws in the Kingdom and it is based on
vears of service and salary af the date of departure. Theeefore the plan and its habilhities are more
senaitEve 1o th:mgnﬁ in falure uala:}' wicreases, future withdrawal rates and the dizcount mte wséd m
assessing labilities,

= The Group is not required o finance the plan, and so the Group has chosen 1o fulfill the payvinent of the
benefits when they nre dug

= The plan's linbilities were evaluated using the projected unit credit method in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard Mo, {19). Since the amount and timmg of fulure
benefits receivable is not currently known, assumptions have heen made to place a value for liabilities
related to past service, and separabcly for liabilities related (o cost of acerual, In the future, thess
assumptions were derived using methodologics that are consistent with the requirements of TAS 19,

= Any changes in the assumptions over time reflect changes in financial, economis and demographic
comnditions, When futere expenences do not match the applicable assumptions, that change 15 included
in the stutement of sther comprehensive income in future financial years

B
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16-1 The movement in the net defined bencfits obligation:
December 31, December 31,
2021 20l
Balance at 1 Janunry 12504 280 [ B304 488
Add; charged fo profit or loss statement
Current service cost 2,156,410 1, 990), 504
[mteres! cost 104, 684 344,94
2,556,104 2335750
Add; charged to OCT statement:
Actuarial {gain) (2,150,721) (447 357)
Cash flow: R
Paid benefits (713, 926) (GEE6EH )
Balance at 31 December 12,203,726 12.504,280
The current service cost has been charged as follows:
2022 2021
Civet of revenes 1,476, 1 6 1453887
Selling and distribution expenses 295 37 [ 1 004
Greneral and admintsirative expenses B4y 375918
2,156,410 1,990,809

16-2 Actuarial Assumptions;

The assessment of the defined benefit plan of the employees' end of service benelits plan was

prepared by an actuanal expert ol the Group using the following key assumptions:

December 31,
202 2021
Discount rate Bt T2 53,17 -3 16
The expected mate of solary morease Bad,5 b 5
Retirement rale for males (per year) 8 65-55
Retirement rate for females (per year) 65 63-55
Average employment turmover (employee tumaover) Moderate™ 12 Modernic®al2
Muortality rate AMD2 Ultininte AMS2 Uliomate

16 -3 Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations 1o changes in the weighted key assumptions is:

201 2021
Changesin ~ Changesin  Percentage Changes in -~ Percentage
assumptions  liability of change Liability of change
. : e |1,683,565  -7.3%% 12,000,803  -5.14%
Discount rate %51 11,654,506  +E.52% 14321342 +9,54%
Saluries ielt 13,741,424 +R.OT% [2 350983 G By
inflation bl 1167 300 =T, 8% 11,955,345 =B 55%

. LA e 12,532,260 L), 62%% [ 2.865.05] -1 5694
Turniover fite %1- 12693260  +0.66% 3300101 +1.73%
—_—— 120% 12608523 -0.02% 13,064,706  -00T%

80 12612483  +0.02% 13,082,650  +0,07%

The sensitivity analysis above are bosed on no chunge in the asswmption with all other
assumplions. In practice, this is unfikely 1o bappen, a8 changes in some asswmptions may be
correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method is applied (the present value of the defined benefits calculated using
the projected unit :nﬂlil method at the end of the reporting period) when ealeulating the defined
benefits recognized in the stutement of financial position

B v 8
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17 EARNING FER SHARE :

December 31,  December 31,

022 T2l
Ml loss for the year afiributable to the sharcholders of the parent 9,795,150 (9.063,067)
Company
Weighted average of sharcs 11,300,000 ) 11,500,000
Basic share profit / { Toss) from ned loss for the year RS {0, 75

There is nio liability convertible to equity instruments, so the diluted profit / loss per share is not different from
the basic profir / loss per share

18 PROVISION FOR SARAT:

Zakat Caleulation:
December 31, December 31,
2022 021
Net Profit Adjusting
Met {loss) profit before znkut 12933934 (5,066,511)
Total adjustments for et profit (1.082,251) 8,119,850
Adjusted net profit 11,841,683 3,053,339
Components of Zakai base
ltems subject 1o zakat base 2R5,607.010 280,935,558
ltems deducted from akot base (161,745,566}  (163,067,35%)
Lakat hase 123,500 444 117,568, 21
Lakat 1,096,536 3.044,0006
18-1 Zakat provigion movements:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2021
Opening balonee 2671120 30011577
Formed during the year 3,086,536 EXS S T
Adjustmenis 122349 G52, 550
Unlized during the yeor _ {2,703.359) {4.337,0113)
3,096,536 2071020

A3 =




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANSUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Sundi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saadi Rival unless otherwise stated)

18-3 Zakat Status;
wl¥ 1] ail akial
The Group gubmitted the zakat declarstion for 2021 and obnined & certificate vald tll Aprl 30 2022,

pnd P

Years from 2003 to 2016

Druring the year 2019 , Zakat, Tax and Cuostoms Authority isswed the Zakal assessment for the vears from
2003 to 2016, resolting zakat differences due from the Company, amounting to SR 116,491, and the
Company paid i during 201%

During the year 2020, Zakat, Tax and Customs Awhority ssued a zakat assessment, resulting zakat
differences due from the Company amounting 10 SR 274 485, and the company paid it.

[ 9
The During the year 2020, Zokat, Tax and customs Authority 1ssued a eokat assessment, which resulted
in raksi differences due on the company on the group for the year 2019 G and the year 2020 G
amounted SE TIED2L, The company has paid the amount due after the objection and the final
assessment, which includes the zaknl assessment for the vear 2020 for the differences o the
consolidated declaration of the company and its subsidiary

FPC {Subsidinry)
4

The Company submitted the zakat declaration for this years and obtained a certificate, During the year
2022, Fakat, Tux and Customs Authorily issued o cokat assessment, resulting zakat differences due for
pavment for the vear 2009 amounting 1o SE 4,730

Yenr 2020
During the vear 2021, the Zakal, Tax and Customs Auibority issucd o zokai pssessment on the
consolidated return of the parent company and 15 subsidiary company, and this resulted in zakat

differences due for payment on the group as shown in the zakat Status of the parent company.

19 REVENUES

2022 2021
Sale of filling and packing products 202,346,126 172,917,484
Sule of wexitle products 5R.30%,147 49,062, 548
260,654,273 222590032
2 COST OF REVENUES
2012 21
Uised munterinl 155,534, 367 134,825 605
Silares 15,852,573 31,192,656
Duisource labor 2452040 2. 040,124
Deprecistion and mmorization B.1 1,3 7.738.203
Uhher operbion expenses 18 854 TOK 18 800,998
Chonges in finished goods and working in progress inventories {2,354,323) {1.093,537)
218,451,137 193,605,049

= i) .




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear eniled December 31, 2022

(Espressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise staied)

21 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Sploriesand s equivalent

Transporiation

Advertising

Pepreciation of propeny, plant and equipment
Other

12 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and 1's equivalen
Professional fees

Board of Directors remumeridion
Depreciation

Securty

Research and development éxpendinire
Insvradce

Unudilieed capacioy ®

Other

2012 2021
5,187,372 4,645,168
6,498,353 4,623,492
594,625 190,402
181,243 177,405
1,824 481 1,643,972
14,286,074 11,283,439

2021 2021
1,966, 38K 10,964,104
1,020,219 H04, 452
1,104,253 1,112,788
250,215 319,321
220,800 220,800
|, 218, 188 945,573
13,673 49,507
- 1328257
1,038 808 1,094,129
19,912,544 18,840,048

* Unutilized capacity hos been calculated according to International Accounting Standard No. 2 "Inventory® and
classifics as other expenses where it does not consider a part of the cost of revenue for the resson of fogtory non-

PTITITN,

23 OTHER INCOME/ (EXPENSES), net

Ansount receivesd lrom Sowdi Human Resource Developont Fund

Amount recerved from The High Insttute for Plostic
Revenue from Small and Medium Enterprises Autherty

Emplovees adjusimenis

Scrap sales

Foreign currency exchanges

Losses from disposal of Properties and equipment
Eevenue from Saudi Expont Development Authority
Other

4 FIN ING L)

Follow-up expenses for the lean of S10F

Amortization of deferred finonce expenses

Loan interests of facilitics from banks

Lenso mterest CHPEN&ES

Interest cost of the contingent obligition for the acquisition of the non-
comtrolling iverest

Interest cost relaied to defined benefits obligations

L

2023 2021
[ 357,420 54,042
105,433 [ 18,345
[, 453,545 [ 59,347
18,335 E4.7940
439,380 215,379
(%.533) (201, B6R)

- (G20.653)

(49,7 .
Ehty, 200 172 748%
4,485,290 183,077

022 021

454 700 427717
516,258 552,729
I.552979 000,851
404 519 419 652
1,422,748 1,422,748
99684 _SM]
5,771,188 4,088,678
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FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
| (A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended Decembor 31, 2022

iExpressed in Soudi Rival unless otherwise siated)

25 THE ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

The parent Company has owned the whole queias in the FPC Company (the subsidiary ), where the Company
during March 2020 signing an agreement which stares the Partner's waiver of all hiz quows of the 2% in FPC
Company with all its rights and obligatons in favor of the parent Company, Agamst obaming a percentage 20%
from net profit according 1o auditing financial statements at the end of each vear over ten vears {duration of the
agreement] Gl the end of a financisl year ended on  December3 |, 2029 (G, Aceordingly, The Company has
prepared a final study for the contingent liability as of December 31, 2022 (G), And that a contingent lability
wits gaboulated by the best estimate in the light of available data, smounied the contingent ability on thal date SR
15612000 (December 31, 2021 {G) wus amounted SB 19564 865 7 | it has been classified within non-current
linbilities in the financial position and will  re-estimate this & contingent liability aanually ever the duration of
the agreement, This acquisition has resulted in an amount of SR 25,358,702 that represents the difference of a
purchase the rights of Mon-controlling imerest which have been classified within the equity, os the following the
summarized of this reatment:

25-1 Deferred Linbility against Non-Controfling Interests Acquisition movement
December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Opening halance 14,564 865 200,325 000
Change in Deferved Liability aganst Mon-
Controlling Interests Acguisiiion (5.375,613) (2. 152,883
Interest expense during the year 1,422 748 1,422 748
15,612,000 19,504, 865
25-2 ihe diffe a purchuse the rights of Noo-conirelling interest
January 31, ﬂ_"'"_llmm’ Dece ] |
2 = 20240
Adjusimenis
A justed
Deferred Liabality against Non- 3
Cantrolling Interesis Acquisttion 20,325,000 20,325,000
Equity for non-controlling interests (5.033.702) 033,702
Effect of Mon-Conitrolling Interesis % " 3
Acquisition = 25.3158,T02 25,158,702
26 CAPITAL COMMI EN

= As of December 31, 2022 (G). the amount of the contingent liabilities relwed to the banks" fetters of
gunrantee and lotters: of crodit which 1ssues by domestic banks on behalfl of the group amounted o SR
4,130,051 [ December 31, 2021{G) SR 17,6594 629},

= Asof December 31, 202200G) the capital commitments: fier the group smounted o SR 76353 (December
31, 2021(G): SR 8,322,430,
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17 SEGMENTS REPORTS

The segments reporis arc related to the activities and business of the group which adopted by the
mmanigement ms a basis for prepanng the fnoancial dita therr own and they are in line with the reporting

methods of the inside.

The Group pructices its business through two opersting segments present in the production and sale of
packing materials for the parent Company and Technical textiles for the subsidiary
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
enrn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate 1o transactions with any of the
Group's other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's management,

Tlie seetor of
products of

packaging
202 346,126

i 164,219,553)
34,126,573

Bevenues
Lozt of revenues
Cirgas profil

The sector of

products of
packing wnd
puckuging
172,927 484
(149 675,479}
23,252,005

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Ciross profi

December 31,2027
technicul iransuclions
iratiles intercompany
58,308,147 .
{54,482.524) 2501, R40
335623 250, Kbt
_ December 11,2021
Ihe secior al Acljustmenis
techimnical transactions
textiles inlercompany
49,662, 548 -
(44, | RO A 10 50,840
54482 13K 2A0 840

Total
260,654,273
{218,451,237)
42,200,036

Total
222,590,032
(193,605, 049)
TH.984 983

The details of wsing the assets of the group before the segments and labilities for the relevant represents is

follows:

The sector of
products of
pucking and
packaging
138,093 535
280,151,857
114 641 617

Mon=current assels
Total nssots
Total linbilities

The sector of
products of
packing and
packaging
Q3 Al 360
268,733,471
123,337 5K0

MNosi<curmeni assets
Totzl nssels
Total liabilities

~ December 31,2022
1he segtor of Adjustments
technical fransactiony
Lextiles inlercompany
B2 457688 (58, 1067 250y
128,133 251 (121,128,008)
103,500,747 (h020,230)
December 31,2021
The sector of Adjustments
technical Lrinsactions
extiles Intercompany
K4 0%, 191 [A2.A439 3
25212 836 {90,501 460

Q1,212 540

- i

(32,393.577)

Total

155,473,364
147,157,010
155,123,134

Total
155,212,571
03, 444 BT
183,356,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Grengraphical segment

A geographical segiment 15 a Group of assels, operations or entines engaged 0 fevenie producing activities
within 8 particular econmmic environment thad are subject to risks and retums differcat from those
aperating m other economic environmenis. The (Group's opemtion is conducted mainly in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arshis, The selected financial information covering the revenue as ut December 31, 2022 and 2021,
categorized by these geographic segments 15 as {ollows:

iz % 0z i

Kingdom of Sandi Arabia |E1009.101  6o% | 50,214,953 a7,

Other countrics TI645.1T2 3% T2AT5079 139
260,654,173 112.5M,032

28 THE TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties represented in the sharcholders and the members: of the board of directors and senior
management personnel i the Company and the institutions which own or manage by these actors or individuals
ngwell the institutions which practice on these actors/individuals collectively or individually common control
and significant influence

Benefits, rewards, and compensation for key management personne| represent in as follows:

December 31,2022
Members of the
Members of | VAT R cammiiilecs
boards of personnel and gmanating from Taokal
directars SERIGC Execulives the Board of
Directors
Salnries nnd woges - 2. 753,017 - 2,751,017
Adlowances | 35,000 Q70,56 24 D) 1,039,566
Hanus [ 620 00Kk SI0h, (KD 250,006 2 370,040
December 31,2021
Members of the
Members o Key management committecs
boards of persomnel and emanili (I }1] Tustal
direciors senior cxecnlives ihe Bonrd ol
Directors
Salaries and wages = 211,012 2 211,032
Allowianees 93,000 | CHB 5 R, LHI0 1,125 500
Bors [ fr 30 i RiLEGE 250,000 1,944,868

Y
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(A Saudl Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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iExpressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated)

2% FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

20-.1 Falr value measurement of Anancial instroments

Fair wolue i the ampunt for which an sssed could be disposed of or a liability seitled heiween
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction st the meessurement dote Under the
defimition of fair value, there is an assumption that a Group is a going concern s there 18 no intention or
conditien to mateninlby curtml the seale of s operations or to undertake o trunsaction on adverse terms

A financial mstrament 18 considered (o be active m an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from a foreign exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulator
and that these prices represent market transactions that have scowrred in an actual and regular manner on
o commercial basis

In measuring fair value, the Group uses observable market information whenever possible. Fair values
are classified into different levels in the fair value erarchy based on the inputs used in valuation
techmigues as follows:

Lewvel 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for similar assets or Labilities thal moy be
obtained at the measurement date.

Level I mputs other than quoted prices that are mcluded in Level 1 which are directly observable for
asaels or Fabilities (eg prices) or indiresthy {derved from prices)

Level 3: inputs for asseis or linkilities that are not based on observable marker mformation
{undishservable inpus),

IT the inputs used to measune the fair value of an asset or linkility fall into different levels of the fair
value hicrarchy, the fair value measurement is [ully classified ot the same level of the fair yolue
hierarchy as the lowest level of inputs is considered matenal 10 the entire measurement.

The Company recogrizes transfers between levels of the finr value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
pertod in which the change vecurred. Duning the periods ended December 31, 2022 (G) end December
31, 2021{G) , there were no transfers between Lével | and Level 2 fair value levels.

Where the Group's financial instruments are grouped on o historical cost basis, except for investments
and dernvative financial mstruments carmed ot foir value, differences may arise between the carrying
amounis and fair value gstimates. Management believes that the Toir vislues of the Company’s financial
sesels and Habilities are not meaterially different from their carrying values

- | S
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{A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Sawdi Rival unless otherwise stated)

Financial nssets

Trade receivables [ WNet

rvestmems a1 fnir value through profin or loss
Prepavments and oher receivables

Cash and cosh egquivalents

Financial linbilities
Loans

Trade Payables
Leaze Linbilities

Contingent Liability against Non-Controlling
[nterests Aoguisition

Acenbed and Other Lishiliiies

Financial assets

Trade receivables Met

Invesmments at fair value through profit or loss
Prepayments and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liahilities

Loans

Trade Payables

Lesase Liabilities

Contingent Liability against Non-Controlling
Interesis Acquisition

Acerued and Other Lisbilities

December 21, 2022
Carrying valoe e
Financial Financial
Haily et it Total
migasured ot pmoriioed e
[air vislui cosl
i 238,119 46,238 319
5, 7TH4, 363 = 5,784,363
- H.R9R 466 BR98,466
- 2,892,135 1892.135
B T84.163 EHOXR U0 pAR13,2H3

December 31, 2022

Liabilities  Liabilities at
measured at  pmortized Total
fair value (R0
il 282 JK1 64, 203 481
- o V. 7317212
1 5612000 I5.60 2, M)
= N 14,670,154 14,670,154
156020040 122454671 L3R M6.6T 1
December 31, 2021
= Carrylng value S
Financial Finmmeial
Assels Axsels ul Totul
easured al wimairiized
[nir value Eosl
3 48,030,950 48,030,950
6,503,192 . 6513192
P! 9368972 9. 308,972
- 12,133, 80K 12,133,800
6,513,192 9,513,711 Th 046,914
Linbilities iabilities
mensured ui wsseis @l Total
Tair volue anarrtived cost
LA R R _GHlLa38
24 772 42T 24,772,427
7,721,187 7,721,187
[, 564, K65 14,564,865
- IS 108595 15,108,895
19,564, 805 146,263 444 165,828,309

- 5l -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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249-2 Financial_instruments risk management;

The Group's activiiies expose it 1o o variety of financial risks, eredit nsk, liquidity nsk, market price risk
wnd capital management risk

The Group's overall risk management progrm focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
sevks W mimmize potential sdverse elfects on the Group's Anancial performance.

Financial risk management ramework

The nsk manapement policy 15 implemented by the senior management in accordance with the policies
approved by the Board of Dreciors. The senfor management idendi fos, assesses and hedpes financial risks
in close cooperation with the Group's operating units. The most important types ol risk are credit risk,
currency risk, fair value and interest rates for cash flows,

The Board of Directors bas overnll respensibility for establishing and overseeing the Group's nisk
management fmmework. The exeoutive management team is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Ceroup's risk management policies. The work team conducts meetings regularly, and any changes or matters
related 1o compliance with policies are reported 1o the Board of Directors through the Audit Commitiee.

The risk manugement systems are reviewed regularly by the executive management team to reflect changes
in market conditions and the group's activities. The Group nims, thoough trining, management standards
and precedures, to develop a responsible and construgtive contrel environment in which all employces are
wire of their roles and obligations.

The Audnt Committee oversees mamagement's compliance with the Group’s nisk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the approprinteness of the nsk monagement fromework moelstion 1o the risks
faced by the Group.

The financial instruments mcluded in the balance sheel include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, loans, trade and other payables. The methods of evidence used are disclosed in the policy
statement for each clause

Market risk

Market risk is the nisk that the Tair value or cash Mows of fnancial instruments may fluctuate due w
changes m market prices. Market risk consssts of three types of risks: interest rate nisk, currency risk, and
other price risk.

Interest rate risk
The following are the loans obiined by the Group, which carry viriable imerest sccording to the interest
rates prevadling nothe market

Flunncial fn a v December 31,2022 December
A2
Short & long ferm loans 30610565 60.774.127

Forcign currency risk:

Currency risk is the Muctuation in the valwe of o fimancial instrument doe o fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, The Group is not substantially exposed to Muctuations m foreign exchange mtes during its
normal business eyele, given that the Group's sigmificant Iransactions dunng the year were carmied out in
Saudi rivals and the US dollar, and as the exchange rete of the Sandi rival is fixed againgt the US dollar, so
there are no significant fisks associnted with transoctions and balances.,

N
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Credit risk:

Credit risk 15 the risk that one pariy to o fooncial isstroment will ot be able o meet its obligntions, and
this will cause the other party to incur o financial loss. Credit risk s the risk that the Group will incer o
finnncial loss iU the customer or counlerprty fils to AT ity contractual obligations. [t arises mainly from
trade peceivables, cash and cash equivalents. The carrving amount of fnancial assets represents the
maximwn exposure W eredil risk.

Degember 21,2022 Degember 31,2021
Trade nccounis recervables 46, 218319 48,030,950
Cash and cash equivalent 2892135 12,133,800
Other debit receivables _ BEORAG6 93GRO7T2
55,018,920 69,513,722

Trade receivables:

The Group's exposure o credit nsk s inflvenced momly by the mdividual charncienstics of each
individual customer. However, management also congiders factors that may have an impact on the eredit
risk of the group's customer base, including the nsk of default in the customer’s sector. The Group
estnblishes an allowance for expected eredit losses, which on December 31, 2022 (G) amounted to SAR
2,036,167 (December 31, 2021(G) amounted 10 SK 6,805495).

Cash and cash equivalenis:

[he Group maintains cash in the fund snd with banks in an smoum of 2.9 million Saudi rivals { December
31, 2021 (GY: 12.1 mallion Saudi riyals). Eiquidity nisk i the risk tha the group will encounter dificulty
in fulfilling its obligations asaocinted with its Mnancial liabilities that are settled by paying in cash or
Through other fAnancral assets, the group’s approach w monaging liquidity aims to ensure that it glweys
has sufficient liquidity, as far as possible, to meet its liabilitics when due, under nomal and critical
circutmstances, without incumng losses or jeopardizing the group’s repatation

Ligquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the difficulty that an entity will encounter in raiging funds o meet obligations reloted 1o
financial instruments, Liquidity nsk con result from an inability o sell & Gnoneial ssset quickly o an
nmount close to its fair value. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring liquidity on an ongeing basis and
ensunng that sufficion financial resources are in place. Concentration in liquidity risk may aris¢ from
conditions of repayment of fimancial obligations, seurces of finuncing and logns, of reliance on a speeilic
ket 1o oblamn higuid assets. The following are ithe maturiiies of the Tnoncial labilities ot the end of the
vear, which are presented as following:

December 31, 2022

On
arryi demand or From 1 year More than 8
value less than Lo 5 vears [T
(e Year
Financial liabilities
Loans 69,202 481 25,267,760 44,024,701 .
Accounts Pavahle - Trade 31,104 524 31,164,824 - -
Lense liahility 7.327.212 413 663 6,915,549 .
Deferved Linbiliby against 15,602,000 z T58 Q00 B, 454 000
Mon-Controlling Interests
Acquusition
Accrod aud Other Creditars 10 70:134 14,670,154 ) .
138,066,671 71,757,537 S8, 06,250 B, 454 (HH)




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudl Jodmt Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the yvear ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Rival unless otherwise stated)

0
k)

T4 2021
Carrving Mﬂuﬂm From | year than 5
vilue o 5 yeurs VEAS
e year
Financial liahilities
Loans ELRATIRE BY 41,980,230 Sty 80, TS .
Accounts Pavable — Trade 24,772,427 24,772,427 . .
Lease labality 7.721, 147 393,965 T 22 .
deferred Liability mgainst 19564 365 - [1089.313 BA75.052
Mon-Controlling Interesis
Acquisition
£

Accroed and Oaher Creditors 5,108,895 15,108,893

165,828,309 82,285,517 75,097,740 8,475,052

Capital managemaent:
The Group's goal when managing copital 5 (o muntun the Group's ability (o continue as @ gong concern s
that it ¢an coentinue to provide returns 1o sharcholders and benefits 10 other stakehelders. And maintaining »

strong capital base to support the sustaineble development of its busimess,

The following is an analysis of the Group's net debt-to-equity ratios:

ecembaer December
3 1, Eﬂl 1 31, 1011
Total labilitics 155,123,134 [B3,356.852
Less: Cash and cash eguivelent {2,802 1315) {12,133 800
Med linbilities I52. 230,94 171,223,052
Total Equity 132033 876 120,087,095
Ratio of debt to adjusted capital 1,18 143

SUBSEOUENT EVENTS:

- The Board of Directors decided in fts mecting held on Rojab 20, 1443 H corresponding to February 21, 2022
O3, b0 recommend o the Extraordimary General Assembly to increase the company s capital by ssuing priority
nehts shores with o fofal amowist of 113 mdlbon Saudi rniyals, provided that the eligihility i3 for the
shareholders who own the shares on the day of the Extraordinury Genersl Assembly which Tt will be decided
W increase the capital by offenng priority righls shares, whose mames appear in the sssued compomy's
shareholder register ot the Depository Center ai the end of the second trading doy following the doie of tha
assembly, afier obtaimng the spprovals of the relevent official suthonties and the extroordinary generl
assemhly,

The company submitted a file for approval 1o incresse the compeny's capital by offering priority rights
shares to the Capital Market Authonty on August 9, 2022 G, through the financial sdvisor appomted for this
purpade {Capital Brokerage), and the company ammounced this on the Saudi Stock Exchange website

{ Todowul ) on Avgust 10, 2022 G, unti] now, the approval of the Capital Market Awthority has been reeeived
on November 29, 2002 G, and the dute Tor the Extraordinary Assembly still pending,

Management belicves that there have not been sny sigmificant subsequent events sinoe the end of the vear that
wirild require disclosure or omendmess o these consolideted {inancinl statements,

NANCIAL STATEMENTS APPROY

The Consolidared Financial Stmements hove been approved by Board of Dircctors on 12 march 2022,
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